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CHAIR PONTANILLA:

...(gavel)... The Budget and

2

Finance Committee meeting for April 12th, 2010, is now in

3

session.

The time is now 9:08.

Good morning, Members.

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I hope you had a wonderful

6

weekend. At this time, the Chair would like to introduce

7

the Members that are here this morning. We do have Member

8

Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aloha.

9
10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha and good morning,

12

Chair.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Nishiki.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Morning.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Victorino.

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning,

17

Chair.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.

19

Excused at this time are Members Molina, Baisa,

20

Kaho'ohalahala, and our Council Chairman, Mr. Mateo.

21

Mr. Mateo currently is on Oahu. They do have a Conference

22

Committee meeting on that House Bill that capped the TAT. I

23

understand that there's only one neighbor island

24

representative from the conferees from the Senate, as well

25

as the outside, and that's Senator Kokubun. So the meeting
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is at 10:30. So hopefully, we do have some good news. So

2

we'll await Mr. Mateo's phone call in regards to what

3

happened in the Conference Committee this morning.

4

At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the

5

Administration. As always, we do have the Budget Director,

6

Mr. Fred Pablo.

7

MR. PABLO: Good morning.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.

9

And our Deputy -- Deputy Corporation Counsel, Traci

10

Fujita Villarosa. This morning we do have the Director of

11

the Water Department, Mr. Jeff Eng.

12

MR. ENG: Good morning.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. As well as the

14

Fiscal Officer for the Water Department, Ms. Holly Perdido.

15

As always, supporting the Committee, we do have Legislative

16

Analyst Gayle Revels, as well as Scott Kaneshina, and our

17

Committee Secretary, Yvette Bouthillier.

18

Member Kaho'ohalahala.

19

Joining us now is

Members, we do have one person that is signed up

20

for public testimony. But before we take public testimony,

21

if everyone in the gallery could turn off their cell phone

22

to the silent mode or turn it off. Thank you. Those people

23

that have signed up for public testimony, you have three

24

minutes to provide testimony. At the two-minute mark, the

25

staff will let you know that you have one minute to
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conclude. So the first person testifying this morning is
Robert Mason.

3

And, Mr. Mason, if you can identify yourself for

4

the record and the organization that you represent. Thank

5

you.
...BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

6

MR. MASON: Good morning, Chair, Committe Members.

7
8

My name is Robert Mason, and I'm here to represent my

9

neighbors on Upper Ulumalu Road in Haiku. We're here this

10

morning to request funding in the FY 2011 Budget for

11

continued maintenance on our road.

12

appropriated $500,000 for maintenance of our road.

13

they appropriated another $250,000. We have, since the

14

beginning of FY 2007, four -- and I guess one ongoing

15

maintenance efforts by the County on our road for that

16

$750,000.

17

In 2007, the Council
In 2009,

The Department of Water Supply said in September of

18

'09, that they purchased -- purchased a small tractor for

19

easier maneuverability on our road for maintenance. We have

20

never seen that tractor. This road is primarily a dirt and

21

gravel road. The Department last added gravel to our road

22

in February of '09, and they've never used a grader on our

23

road. And I don't know if any of you have been around where

24

they do maintenance on a road, but the first thing you use

25

is a grader.
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The last about six-tenths of the mile -- that's

2

never been maintained by the Department at all. And I'm

3

talking about the last six years. In the first tenth of

4

that mile as the road turns east is so bad that you can't

5

hardly drive on it because the ruts are so bad. And I would

6

not drive on it at night at all.

7

Anyway, as I looked in the budget for Fiscal 2011,

8

I see that the Department has -- in their Field Operations,

9

Page 21-18, has requested about a million and a quarter

10

dollars for materials, and over 4 million for labor and

11

wages. Is part of that for -- to keep our road maintained?

12

I don't know. We'd like to have that question asked.

13

MS. REVELS: Two minutes.

14

MR. MASON: And the second question is what has

15

happened to all that $750,000 that's been appropriated the

16

last four years? Because I don't think five -- about five

17

maintenance jobs on our road covers $750,000.

18

Basically that's -- that's my testimony. Mahalo

19

again for all your past support, especially Councilmember

20

Molina who's been very diligent in trying to resolve this

21

issue of keeping our road maintained over the last six

22

years.

I'm open for questions.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

24

Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing

25

none. First of all, I'd like to welcome Member Molina.
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Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair. My
apologies for being a little late this morning.
Good morning, yeah, Mr. Mason. Thank you very

5

much, once again, for your testimony. And I must say you've

6

been very patient, you and the residents of Upper Ulumalu.

7

And thank you for bringing up the subject of what's happened

8

to the money; how has it been spent, if it has been. And,

9

you know, I want to apologize. As your area rep, I -- you

10

know, I've worked hard. And the colleagues of mine on the

11

Council who were on at the time to support the

12

appropriation, they all worked hard. And former

13

Councilmember Anderson, as you know, was on the -- was the

14

Chair of the Water Committee. She brought it to the

15

attention --

16
17

MR. MASON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- of the community, and

18

whatnot. And now my understanding is you're not getting any

19

response, or -- or it's taken this to get some kind of

20

response. It's an embarrassment. Can you tell me based on

21

your testimony, you -- have you -- since the Paia meeting,

22

has there been any contact? Has the Department or the

23

Administration responded?

24

MR. MASON: Well, the last time -- the

25

Administration, I really -- I pretty much almost gave up
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last -- no, in October, because I had very little response

2

or I was redirected to the Department. So in November, I --

3

I sent an e-mail to the Department management saying the

4

road is really bad; we really need somebody out here to --

5

to do some maintenance. No reply. I followed it up with

6

three phone calls, left voicemails. No reply.

7

And that's almost typical of the -- of the, you

8

know, the treatment that we've gotten over the years. And

9

to say that the road is satisfactory, I -- I just can't

10

believe that. Anyone in this room, please come up and I'll

11

give you a ride on our road. You can't hardly take it. And

12

I won't even drive over 15 miles an hour because you can't.

13

I mean, this road is not satisfactory unless you consider

14

something hole -- full of holes and potholes and ruts and --

15

and -- and -- and water running down the middle of the road.

16

It needs -- it needs gravel. It needs graded properly. And

17

then eventually, of course, we'd like to have it paved. For

18

$750,000, I think we could have got it paved, by the way.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. And,

20

Mr. Mason, and you guys are not asking for a full, you know,

21

have the road -- just basically, improve it from what it

22

currently is?

23

MR. MASON: We would just like to have the road

24

safe so people can drive on it, so people can walk on it, so

25

people -- people ride their horses down through it all the
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That's -- that's all we're asking for. You know, we
time.

2

pay -- we pay our taxes just like everybody else. I just

3

saw an increase in my property taxes again this year. But

4

we're not getting -- I don't think we're getting, you know,

5

respect. We're not getting a response that we -- we should

6

be getting. For what the Council has appropriated, the

7

Department has not responded or the Administration.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mason.
This is certainly embarrassing. And we'll -- we'll get the

10

answers to the questions that you and the residents of Upper

11

Ulumalu have. And you guys have been very patient and --

12

and a little bit nice. But this is certainly potentially a

13

real black eye on this Administration.

14
15

Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll have my questions ready
for the Department at a later point.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

17

Member Medeiros?

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

19

Mr. Mason, good morning and thank you for being

20

here. In your testimony, you made quite a few references to

21

the Department. And when you referenced the budget, it was

22

the Department of Water Supply. I think when you referenced

23

the purchase of a small dozer, it was Water -- Department of

24

Water Supply. Is it your understanding that the Department

25

of Water Supply maintains your road, or the Department of
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Public Works, Highways Division?

2

MR. MASON: No, this has been through the previous

3

Council. We went before the Water Resource Committee. And

4

because the Water Supply -- Department of Water Supply put

5

in a new system underneath our road in 2002, the subsequent

6

road repaving job and -- and, you know, we get terrible

7

rains out there. The road eroded in less than a year.

8

So -- and we've been trying to get it maintained.

9

The Council and the Mayor, by the way, has assumed

10

the responsibility that the Water Dep -- Department of Water

11

Supply should maintain this road for us on a quarterly

12

basis. Well, we've had about five in four years. It

13

doesn't exactly equate to quarterly. Or better, in case the

14

road gets worse. But at least, quarterly maintenance. And

15

we have not had that.

16
17
18
19
20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay, thank you
for that clarification for me.
MR. MASON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I'm sure your area
representative, Mr. Molina, will follow up on it. But the

21 people that maintain the roads and have the equipment to
22

maintain it is Public Works, Highways. So I'm not sure if

23

Department of Water Supply has graders, and so forth, to do

24

that kind of maintenance. But thank you for the

25

information.
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MR. MASON: Yes. In fact, I think the very first

two maintenance were actually done by Public Works.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

4

MR. MASON: And then the Department of Water Supply

5

took it back in within the Department. And I -- but even

6

then, I'm pretty sure because I'm there, I do not think the

7

Public Works actually brought a grader out. They did bring

8

out a big backhoe, and they put down gravel. And they

9

had -- they had a compactor, which really helped because

10

that really got the road smoothed.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

12

MR. MASON: But grader, we have never seen.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you,

14

Mr. Mason. Hopefully, this can be moved with a little more

15

expediency than it has been. Thank you for your testimony.

16

MR. MASON: Thank you.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

19

Members, any more questions for the testifier?

20

Seeing none, thank you again for being here.

21

The next testifier is Felix Van Dyke.

22

MR. VAN DYKE: Good morning. My name is Felix Van

23

Dyke. I live on Ulumalu with Bob. I'm here to testify

24

about the road condition as well.

25

couple years up there. We've been waiting for a little bit

It's been a frustrating
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of assistance. I actually grew up in Hana. So bad roads to

2

me are nothing new, you know. So if it's bad for me, it's

3

bad. Sometimes my mom has a hard time getting in and out.

4

I've been calling and communicating with various

5

people. And it's been a frustrating issue.

6

something that's kind of a gray area. There's really nobody

7

to blame. I'm kind of hoping that we can try to find some

8

sort of -- somebody that can kind of keep an eye on it and

9

try to keep things rolling for us up there. It seems like

It's been

10

it's being passed between Public Works and the Water

11

Department. I feel that the Water Department is not really

12

equipped for that, and it should be in Public Works hands.

13

I've -- I've come in here and testified a few

14

times. And there's probably only one face that's familiar

15

to me now is Mr. Molina here, who's been on the job from the

16

beginning. It's probably the third -- the third -- the

17

third Administration, I think, as far as Mayors.

18

with Lingle, Apana, Arakawa, and now -- and now Tavares. So

19

it's been a long road.

20

It started

I've got another issue up there. We have some

21

private property that the waterline passed through. And we

22

spent a lot of money improving that road and the drainage

23

system. And I went out there and -- and asked them if they

24

could replace that and bring it back to -- to where we had

25

it. And I was told, "You don't gotta worry. Once they put
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the line through here, they gonna take care." And that's
how they shut me up.

3

So now, if you know how a road is graded, there's

4

usually a crown. My private property that needs a crown is

5

pretty much flat, if not a reverse crown. So I got water

6

running down the center of the road all year round.

7

MS. REVELS: Two minutes.

8

MR. VAN DYKE: And it's just old already. I've

9

been pleading and begging for somebody to come and, you

10

know, just take a look at it and help us out. Water

11

Department's trying.

12

Pub -- Public Works seemed to have it under control for a

13

while there, and it just kind of all slipped away. But I

14

just came down to just let you know. Thank you.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

16

Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none,

17
18

I -- I don't think they're equipped.

thank you.
Members, Mr. Van Dyke was the last person to sign

19

up for public testimony. Is there anyone in the gallery

20

that wants to provide public testimony at this time, please

21

come forward?

22
23

Seeing none, if there's no objections, the Chair
would like to close public testimony.

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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...END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27, CC 10-61, CC 10-68).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, before we review the

5

Department of Water Supply Fiscal Year 2011 Budget, I just

6

want to make a statement in regards to the process. The

7

Chair would like to have a -- all of you members attend this

8

Budget and Finance Committee Meeting. I know we had bare

9

quorum last week, and it concerns me in regards to doing the

10

work for the public. So if you're going to be absent,

11

please let me know ahead of time so that I'm aware in

12

regards to having quorum for our meetings. I really

13

appreciate all of you for attending the meetings up to this

14

point. So if you could, please let me know so we can count

15

heads in regards to having quorum at all meetings as we move

16

forward. So thank you.

17

This morning we do have the Department of Water

18

Supply with us. But before I call on Mr. Eng for some

19

comments, I'd just like to call on Mr. Pablo. Mr. Pablo has

20

some comments to make. Mr. Pablo.

21

MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. And good

22

morning, Members. I just want to make a few comments before

23

Director Jeffrey Eng from the Department of Water Supply and

24

starts the budget deliberations in review of the programs.

25

The Department of Water Supply is under the Water
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Fund. It's entirely funded from the Water Fund. And if you

2

recall on my opening remarks about three weeks ago, I

3

explained where the funding comes from to run the Water

4

Fund. The -- this Department has eight programs, including

5

what we call a Department-wide expense, which is sort of a

6

countywide at the Department level.

7

The Water Fund -- or the Department of Water Supply
They work their

8

is completely self -- self-sufficient.

9

expenses out and determine the revenue that they need to

10

operate for the Fiscal Year. We -- in addition to the eight

11

programs, they have 15 CIPs this year. And in the handouts

12

which I gave you this morning, I -- I added a 16th CIP. In

13

the past month, we learned that there's a possibility of

14

applying for grant funding from the EPA. And so we have

15

included that for the Fiscal Year 2011.

16

In the other hand out, which you should have

17

distributed to you this morning is for each of these

18

programs, we have readjusted the furlough savings. When we

19

had initially worked out the furlough savings, we did it to

20

account for any type of overtime. We've gone back to the

21

Department, and we've agreed to adjust the furlough savings

22

to reflect 4.6 percent. Any adjustments within the water

23

fund remains in the water fund. So the adjustments for the

24

furlough savings have been accumulated, and it's going to be

25

going towards the plant treatment operations for
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electricity.
Director Jeffrey Eng is here to answer any of your

3

questions. And also Holly Perdido from the Department of

4

Water Supply. Thank you.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Pablo.

6

Mr. Eng, do you have any opening comments before we

7

review the Administration Program?

8

MR. ENG: Yes, I do, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

9

Thank you, Director Pablo.

10

Good morning, Committee Members. I do have a brief

11

introduction. First of all, the staff and I are pleased to

12

be here this morning to review with you our Fiscal Year 2011

13

operating and CIP budgets. We will be going over all of our

14

operating budgets by program. Next to me is Holly Perdido,

15

our Fiscal Officer. Each of our Division or Program heads

16

will be called up to provide you with an overview of their

17

operations and to respond to your questions. Jacky

18

Takakura, our Administrative Officer, is also here and

19

available to respond to your questions.

20

As you all know, the Department of Water Supply is

21

responsible for managing and operating all water systems

22

owned by the County of Maui. The Department of Water Supply

23

is an extremely diverse department in terms of its range and

24

variety of tasks and responsibilities.

25

consists of seven programs:

The Department

Administration, Fiscal and
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Customer Service, Engineering, Water Resources and Planning,

2

Water Treatment Plant Operations, Field Operations, and

3

Plant Operations. As you meet with our division heads again

4

today and review their individual programs, you will get a

5

true sense of the magnitude of our responsibilities.

6

First, I would like to offer you an overview of our

7

water systems. The Department of Water Supply maintains

8

over 750 miles of waterlines and 145 storage tanks, with 295

9

million gallons of storage. We operate six surface water

10

treatment facilities and 35 groundwater sources. We serve

11

almost 36,000 customers, and we maintain and monitor the

12

water systems 24 hours per day.
Public health is our first priority. And the water

13
14

provided by the Water Department must meet all state and

15

federal water quality standards. We operate a water quality

16

laboratory and our lab personnel collect over 35,000 water

17

samples annually to ensure our water quality. Our water

18

treatment plant operators also collect and test thousands of

19

samples to ensure high-quality finished water from their

20

facilities.

21

One of our biggest challenges is our aging

22

infrastructure. Some of our waterlines are 30 to 50 years

23

old. They are at the end of their useful life. Some of our

24

waterlines are not just old, but are of substandard sizes,

25

which compromises fire protection. This is another area

CAMMIE GILLETT, RPR, CSR
(808) 244-DEPO
17

1
2

4/12/10 BF
that we need to continually address.
We also face challenges in our efforts to develop

3

new water sources.

4

some of our aquifers are already close to being fully

5

developed. Some of our aquifers have water quality issues

6

that we either need to avoid altogether or plan to mitigate

7

by some type of treatment process. And some aquifers have

8

an undetermined or uncertain quantity of available

9

groundwater, which requires us to invest significant sums of

10
11

In regard to groundwater development,

money to explore.
In regard to surface water development, we

12

currently face pending decisions by the State Commission on

13

Water Resource Management on instream flow standards for

14

streams in the West Maui Mountains and the East Maui

15

Watershed. The decisions might even impact our current use

16

of the surface water. Providing water never gets less

17

costly. The cost to meet federal and state water quality

18

regulations continually increase.

19

supplies that we utilize in performing our daily work are

20

always rising.

21

benefit costs are costs we have little or no control over.

22

Costs of materials and

Fuels, electricity, labor and employee

However, as you have heard, the Water Department is

23

financially self-sustaining.

Not having any reliance on the

24

general funds, we carefully evaluate our revenue

25

requirements in order to sustain our programs, while at the
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same time, minimizing rate impacts to our customers.

2

For Fiscal Year 2011, the Department has reduced

3

its overall proposed operating budget from $56.1 million in

4

the current Fiscal Year to $51.8 million; a $4.3 million, or

5

a 7.7 percent reduction. Our proposed operating budget

6

includes all operating expenses, debt service and OPEB --

7

that's other post employment benefits other than pensions.

8

Currently, we have 225.2 full-time equivalent personnel.

9

And we are requesting no expansion positions in the proposed

10

budget.

11

And, Mr. Chairman, at this time, with the help of

12

our Division heads, I'd like to begin going over the

13

Department's seven programs.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

MR. ENG: I will start with Administration Program.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Eng, we'll take one program

17
18
19

at a time.
MR. ENG: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then let me lead the review

20

period. And I'll give you some time to make some opening

21

comments in regards to Administration Program. And that

22

will take -- I know you have some field operation guys over

23

here. And we're going to take it, you know, out of context

24

in regards to having those field operators, managers get out

25

from this chamb -- chambers as soon as possible.
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2

MR. ENG: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before I get back to

3

Mr. Eng, I'd just like to recognize the presence of Member

4

Baisa.

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And our Chairman,

7

Member Mateo. That was a quick turnaround with Hawaiian Air

8

this morning. Thank you.

9

Okay. Mr. Eng, yeah, we do have the Administration

10

Program that's first up for review. If you want to make

11

opening comments before I ask the Members to ask questions

12

of the Department and your Administration Program.

13
14

MR. ENG: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Administration Program includes the Director --

15

the Deputy Director -- Director, our secretaries, including

16

the secretary to the Board of Water Supply, our

17

Administrative Officer, our Personnel Assistant, and our

18

Safety Specialist.

19

the administrative functions of the Department and oversees

20

all the Departments other programs. This program is also

21

responsible for human resources, public communications,

22

community relations and the Department's safety program.

23

One of the recent key achievements in the Administration

24

Program has been the development of our safety program,

25

which includes providing safety training, providing the

The Administration Program handles all
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necessary standard and specialized safety equipment to

2

perform our work, and providing training to properly utilize

3

the safety equipment.

4

The overall goal of our safety program is to bring

5

the Department into full compliance with Hawaii's

6

Occupational Safety and Health Plan. The overall primary

7

goal of the Administration Program is to keep all of our

8

employees focused on becoming more efficient in terms of how

9

we work and how we use utilize our resources. As you know,

10

our mission is to provide -- to provide clean water

11

efficiently.

12
13

Mr. Chairman, I think if you would like to turn to
page 21-5.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, on page 21-5 --

15

MR. ENG: -- go over some of our expenses.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's on the Program sheet or

17

Details?

18

MR. ENG: Program.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Program, okay.

20

MR. ENG: And I believe at this time, we can

21

also -- since we're looking at this page, we can go over our

22

Department-wide expenses too. They're really -- as far as

23

the Administration Program, again, we have an overall

24

reduction of 3.7 percent from the current fiscal year. Most

25

of the that is accounted by the proposed furlough plan.
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There really isn't that much in terms of expenses in the

2

Administration Program itself, except for the various

3

salaries of the employees.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

5

Mr. Victorino, you got any questions regarding the

6

A Account, which is the Administration? According to

7

Mr. Eng, they show a change of 3.7 percent.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct. Thank

9

you. And he answered the question of the purpose and why

10

that was.

11

And thank you, Mr. Eng, for your comments, your

12

opening comments. At this time, I really don't have any

13

questions on the A Account. Thank you.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

Chairman Mateo?

16

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, in addition to A

17

Account, are we also able to address Department-wide

18

expense?

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just the A Account for now.

20

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. No questions.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

24

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions. But,

2

Chair, I just wanted to know is -- is the Director's

3

comments and -- earlier made, are they available to us?

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. As soon as I'm done with

5

the Administration A Account, B Account and C Account, and

6

then I'll give you an opportunity to ask questions of

7

Mr. Eng's overview.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Can we have a

8
9

copy of his summary presentation?

10

MR. ENG: Sure. I'll make it available to you.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.

12

Member Baisa?

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nothing at this time.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, just one brief

16

question for the Department. Actually, just more of a

17

comment.

18

that program. And I can -- I understand you're faced with

19

having to make some tough cuts. But it's such a beneficial

20

thing for our kids, you know, and they can learn from our --

21

our Department staff and inspire them. And it's an

22

opportunity for them to, you know, understand the inner

23

workings of the Government and the Water Department. So

24

it's too bad you had to make this cut at that area. So I

25

just wanted to leave it at --

I know that the student interns, you're cutting
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MR. ENG: And, Member Molina, we agree with you.

2

We find our interns are real valuable when it allows us to

3

catch up with a lot of things that kind of pile up during

4

the year. They can -- come in and kind of relieve a lot of

5

that workload. So, yeah, we are going to miss those

6

positions dearly.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

8

Thank you, Chair.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that question,

10

Member Molina. Those are tough decisions that have to be

11

made in this Fiscal Year 2011 budget.

12
13
14
15
16

Mr. Victorino, you got any questions on -- on the
B -- B Account? 19-4?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm Sorry. You went
faster than I got my page.
No. No, sir. Pretty flat account. I just hope --

17

the electricity part is always the one I'm worried about.

18

But that's just the Administration.

19

ones later.

I'll get with the other

Thank you, Chair.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo.

21

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I kind of wanted to ask

24

Jeff, because of this March 10th communication,

25

Mr. Chairman. This is -- this is a general question. He's
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got 18 vacancies.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Have you frozen the

4

positions? Or what is the Department's policy that you're

5

going to deal with the vacant?

6

MR. ENG: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. On that list

7

that you've gotten and I have -- I don't know if I have that

8

one before me. But I know it was back in February when we

9 met before this body to talk about our -- how we were going
10

to address the current year fiscal year shortages. And I

11

think I explained to -- to this body that we were going to

12

really put a freeze on the hiring of 12 positions. But

13

basically, the plan was to defer those hirings until the new

14

fiscal year. But at some point, we would like to fill as

15

many as we can.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I guess, Mr. Chairman,

17

in -- in -- in this year of austerity, I think we need the

18

assistance of the Water Department to give us an idea of

19

approximately when we're going to fill these positions

20

and -- and fund those positions accordingly. We all know

21

the game that can be played. By not filling positions, then

22

they've got money. And then because of the program budget,

23

they can move money around. So I -- I -- I -- I think we

24

need a little bit of sincerity from the Department if

25

they're not going to fill it. And -- and -- and that way
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have an estimation and then feel if it's going to be eight

2

months, seven months, whatever it is, then take out that

3

money from them. Because again, it's money not being really

4

used. And -- Jeff, what do you think?
MR. ENG: Member Nishiki, you know, perhaps we

5
6

should give you an updated list of our plan for funding or

7

not funding these positions.

8

list, we do plan to -- to hopefully fill in the next fiscal

9

year. There are a few, though, that we do have plans not to

The majority, again, on this

10

fund. So maybe we should give you this updated list. Some

11

of these positions are difficult to fill in that it really

12

is based on the local labor pool, particularly like in field

13

operations, when some of the positions require a certain

14

licenses.

15

The real good news recently is that we've been able

16

to fill our engineering positions that have been vacant for

17

so long. We had one new engineer starting this morning. We

18

had two that started about two to three weeks ago. And we

19

had another gentleman that started about four months ago.

20

And we do have plans to fill one more position at the

21

beginning of the next fiscal year. So we're in pretty good

22

shape overall.

23

positions to fill based on their qualifications.

It's just that there are some difficult

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jeff.

25

Mr. Nishiki, I understand your plight. I have the
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same concerns based on what happened last year.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And -- and -- and --

3

and, Jeffrey, if they're hard to fill, then we can accept

4

that. But, you know, it's just this money thing that we're

5

concerned about, just as you should be. And we need to

6

squeeze the Departments for really updated information to

7

give us the best guesstimate.

8
9
10

MR. ENG: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I -- I -- I don't think
that we should fund the entire salary. That's all.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I think we can squeeze

13

a lot of money from all the Departments with all these

14

vacancies that we have. I mean, this is many pages. I

15

didn't count them.

16
17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, there -- there is a lot of
vacancies --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- within the County of Maui.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: And what I'll do is ask staff to

22

write to each of the Departments in regards to what we have

23

in here, what positions are vacant at this time. And, you

24

know, Mr. Nishiki you bring a good point. If we don't need

25

the position or the position can't be filled, take it out.
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In other words, we don't leave the position in -- in the

2

budget. Too many times we've been surprised the positions

3

are filled. So if there is a vacant position it's very

4

critical, then you departments come tell us why it's so

5

critical.

6

proposal.

Otherwise, we'll just remove it from the budget

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You're talking about the

7
8

funding. Right? You're not going to eliminate the

9

position?

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Eliminate the position.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, you're going to

12
13

eliminate the position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That way, you come back next

14

year and you tell us why it's so important. Gotta make some

15

hard choices. This is one of them.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's fine.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros?

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. No,

19

just following up on your thinking about vacant positions.

20

And as you say, you know, some vacant positions may be

21

critical to the Department and they're finding difficulty

22

filling it. Is there any way to put any proviso on these

23

vacant positions or the funding so that it's only used for

24

that position and nothing else?

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I -- I -- I need to check if
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it's legal to put in a proviso saying that all vacancies
going forward before it's filled come back to this Council.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I -- I think we -- we need

4

some control even though we don't want to, you know, manage

5

the Departments. But we need control as far as fiscal

6

responsibility that we know the money is going to what we

7

end -- intended it to go to and not move it to someplace

8

where it didn't intend to go. So just a suggestion,

9

Mr. Chairman.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

11

Member Kaho'ohalahala.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair.

13

On 19-5 on the Details, can you just explain to us Item

14

6112, which is contractual services, and just the change?

15

MR. ENG: Yeah, that's a change in the -- our

16

various copiers that we have in the office. And that was

17

just based on -- well, if you look at what we expended

18

Fiscal Year '09, we'd expend 8,125.

19

underfunded it in the current fiscal year.

20
21
22
23
24
25

So actually we had

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: In the current year?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then below
that, you've got other services, 6129.
MR. ENG: You know, I don't have any detail of what
those expenses are. Again, based on actuals, June '09, it
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was about $4,900.

2
3

So we had budgeted $5,000.

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But you don't know
what that service is?

4

MR. ENG: I don't have the details noted.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then my

6

only other question was on the bottom towards 6221, other

7

costs?

8
9
10

MR. ENG: Okay. We -- the Department has a
department membership with the American Water Works
Associations.

11
12

So that's a membership fee.

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it's just being
reduced down from current budget?

13

MR. ENG: It was probably over-budgeted.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Over over-budgeted.

15

MR. ENG: For fiscal year. So it was reduced based

16

on that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you,

17
18

Chair.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

20

Member Johnson?

21

(Silence.)

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

Member Baisa?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll go to the C Account.

2

These are equipment replacements.

3

Member Molina, you got any other questions?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. Happy to see the budget

7

for safety equipment in place. Thank you.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

9

Member Johnson?

10

(Silence.)

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

12

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. Pass.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

18

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, I'll give you

19
20

one pass in regards to the opening comments that the

21

Director had talked to us prior to reviewing the different

22

accounts.

23
24
25

Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. I certainly appreciate
the immense responsibilities the Department has. And I know
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Mr. Eng has taken on a lot. And he's -- overall, I'm

2

generally pleased with the Department other than Ulumalu

3

Road, which I do have some questions at a later point,

4

Mr. Chairman. But no, no questions on the Director's

5

opening remarks at this point. Thank you.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

7

Member Baisa?

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

10

(Silence.)

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

12

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, question. You

13

know, if I could get a copy of that because I think you went

14

through a lot of statistics there that I was trying to keep

15

track of and I didn't get a chance to get them all. So that

16

didn't give me a complete understanding of everything that

17

you had.

18

other questions.

19
20
21

So maybe, Chair, after getting that, I'll have

But just off the cuff, when you say an aquifer is
fully developed, can you tell me what that means?
MR. ENG: I kind of was making reference to the Iao

22

aquifer, where it's a designated aquifer and it has a limit

23

on the amount of pump permit allocations. And that is

24

almost at its fully developed state. You know, there is a

25

little bit of remaining pump allocation, but not very much.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So can you put that

into lay terms?

3

MR. ENG: Basically, just about fully developed.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Meaning?

5

MR. ENG: Under the eyes of the Water Commission,

6

they will not issue any further permits.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Or take any more

7
8

water out?

9

MR. ENG: Or issue any more permits.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Or issuing permits?

11

MR. ENG: There is a trace allocation that a number

12

of us has applied for you, but it's not very much. It's

13

another million gallons a day in that order.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

15

MR. ENG: So it's almost at its fully developed

16
17
18
19

state.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And again, if
I can get a copy, then I'll have other questions to ask.
MR. ENG: Sure.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

22

Member Medeiros?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

24

Director Eng, just to follow up on Member

25

Kaho'ohalahala's questioning.

So fully developed means they
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won't issue any more permits for that aquifer?

2

MR. ENG: You know, as -- as I mentioned, there's a

3

little remaining allocation, but there's a few parties that

4

are all trying to apply for that. We are one of the

5

parties. And that is still before the Water Commission.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. What would be the

7

impact on the Water Department if the aquifer is considered

8

fully developed and you no longer can qualify for new

9

permits to pump?
MR. ENG: Well, then like any other party, we'd

10
11

have to develop elsewhere for groundwater.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Does that aquifer
spread out fairly wide or concentrated in the Iao Valley?

14

MR. ENG: You know, well, that's one of our efforts

15

currently is some of the replacement wells we're developing

16

for Shaft 33, we're trying to replace that one well with

17

five wells.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

19

MR. ENG: And we have two currently under

20

construction and two or three more are being planned

21

currently.

22
23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Director, for
that information.

24

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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2

Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Jeff, this is really

3

chewing the chewed. But, you know, we hear time and time

4

again looking for new source, when in actuality, I think

5

even in the Water Use and Development Plan, the -- the

6

answer was, Mr. Chairman, knowing how much of that water,

7

especially that is coming out of Central and especially in

8

the Kihei area, where the water is basically used for

9

irrigation and not for consumption by many homes.

10

What has been our success in curtailing that use?

11

MR. ENG: Member Nishiki, you know, our pleas

12

for -- for conservation that we were very strong -- brought

13

out strongly three years ago has been very successful in

14

that our Central Maui demand, at one point, was reduced by

15

about three million gallons a day. So it could be a culm --

16

again, it could be a combination of a number of things. I

17

think one was our conservation efforts and going real public

18

with that.

19

Second thing could have been our -- our various

20

rate increases over the years. That's got to have some

21

effect on how much water people are using. And a third

22

might be the economy. You know, I was trying to look at

23

some of the hotel occupancy -- no, not their occupancy, but

24

their consumption in the past calendar year, 2009 versus

25

2008, there was a continuing slight reduction in their
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consumption. I think we saw the greatest reduction in 2007

2

to 2008. But there has been a reduction in -- in -- in

3

demand and consumption.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

5

I guess, you know, Mr. Chairman, when we talk to

6

some of the engineers about them going and developing,

7

sources the exorbitant expense. And I guess in the Water

8

Use and Development Plan, the -- the thrust was for reuse.

9

And so, Jeffrey, how successful has that been in

10

you working with the other departments to try to create

11

the -- the reuse so that perhaps we won't need to go look

12

for other sources because we can, again, use the reuse as a

13

way to eliminate people from using this precious water?

14

MR. ENG: Member Nishiki, as you know, the

15

Department is a big proponent of reuse when it is economical

16

and efficient.

17

One of the things that we would want to see, of

18

course, is to displace the use of potable water with reuse.

19

And I think that's one of the challenges even the Wastewater

20

Division is dealing with when they do their planning in the

21

South Maui area where they can apply reuse is just to

22

fulfill the needs of really displacing potable water. And

23

that's what we need to see.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I think -- I think there
are like Wailea Association and -- and some of those hotels,
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Mr. Chairman, are really would -- would -- would love to get

2

a hold of that water if they could get it at a less

3

expensive price in lieu of us raising rates. And so raising

4

rates, good or bad, I don't know.
But, Jeff, there was last year, I was asking you

5
6

about perhaps trying to catch those that are exorbitant

7

water use -- users in creating another tier. Is that maybe

8

this year a consideration?
MR. ENG: Member Nishiki --

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You reluctantly did not

10
11

want to deal with it.

12

MR. ENG: Well, the reason I was reluctant is we

13

didn't have the means to properly design the proper rate

14

proposal in that we'd have to use all the information and

15

data off of our billing database. And the current database

16

doesn't allow us to do that.
Now, currently -- again, our billing is done by the

17
18

Honolulu Board of Water Supply. And they are looking at a

19

new program for their billings, which we think will have the

20

features for us to extract more data, identify our

21

customers, classify them as we wish to. And, you know, down

22

the road, I really think we might have a number of different

23

customer classes with different rate designs for each of

24

them.

25

would probably love to see that.

So that's something that we're not ignoring. We
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So commercial might be in a separate class. Maybe

2

hotel, condominiums might be -- you know, it could be at our

3

whim, really, what we think is most efficient and fair. So

4

it's something that we look forward to doing.

5
6
7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: We don't foresee it in this
year's budget?
MR. ENG: No, because I think the Honolulu Board of

8

Water Supply is just recently has selected a vendor for

9

their new billing program.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'm done.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

12

Member Mateo?

13

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you.

14

Mr. Eng, your overall Department percent reduction,

15

with that in mind and your reference to the older lines that

16

we still have -- the 30 to 50 year old lines that still

17

exist. This -- this fiscal year in itself does provide your

18

Department with challenges, but the challenge is going to

19

continue with next fiscal year as well. So what does it

20

mean to your Department with this 7.7 overall reduction in

21

operations in trying to address these old lines so that we

22

don't get to a situation like the City and County of

23

Honolulu where lines are breaking, you know, almost every

24

week there? Because we -- we virtually are at that point.

25

MR. ENG: Thank you, Councilmember Mateo. Yes,
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with the limitations we've placed on our budget, proposed

2

budget, it does kind of tie our hands. You know, one thing

3

that we needed to consider strongly was, you know, the rate

4

impacts to our customers. And so, you know, next week

5

Monday, we'll be talking about our rates and fees. We are

6

looking at somewhere in the order of about a 7 percent rate

7

increase.

8
9

We felt, given the current economic conditions and
all the other challenges, we targeted for something in the

10

single digit rate increase. So that was kind of our goal.

11

We certainly would like to request more. I mean, I can

12

really come up with some very valid and good, strong

13

arguments that we should go up much higher. I mean, I could

14

see us going out for -- forward 20 percent a year and still

15

be catching up and still be behind some of the County water

16

systems as far as their rates. But I don't think we can do

17

it all at one fell swoop.

18

But it's something that maybe at some point -- some

19

point in time -- and, you know, our Engineering Division is

20

gearing up for that, to handle new CIP. Again, the new

21

engineer that started today is going to be assigned to CIP.

22

And that's going to be real key. We've been down to one

23

person over the past several months. So everyone else

24

has -- else has had to take a load, and they've come

25

through. So -- but the Engineering Division is gearing up
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to do more CIP, maybe to justify those rate increases and
encumber those funds.
So I think we are going in the right direction.

4

This was just a difficult year, and I think we wanted to

5

keep it to that single digit rate increase.

6

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And, Mr. Eng, those CIP

7

projects that you -- you referenced, those will be CIPs that

8

will address the old -- the old lines that we have?

9
10
11
12

MR. ENG: Yeah, I think we have a couple projects
that we'll be reviewing.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And also, Mr. Eng, on -in your opening statement, you also touched on debt service.

13

MR. ENG: Uh-huh.

14

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Can you tell me what this 2.2

15
16
17
18

million reduction means in terms of stability?
MR. ENG: You know, I think I'll allow Holly
Perdido to address that, please.
MS. PERDIDO: One of the reasons the debt service

19

decrease was we paid off one of the bonds. So that was a

20

big chunk of it that we paid off. And we anticipated, if

21

you had the schedule for the debt service, you know, we do

22

anticipate debt service coming out in the future. But a few

23

of the bonds we haven't started paying principle payments on

24

until next year. So we will see the debt service

25

increasing, you know, as we add new bonds or add new
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revolving loan funds.

2

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So -- so this -- this

3

two -- this reduction this year is something that is just, I

4

guess, associated with this fiscal year? Because next

5

Fiscal Year '12, we'll see an increase in the debt service

6

again?
MS. PERDIDO: Yes, we will. But it will not be to

7
8

this magnitude. The 1993 GO bond was paid off. And that

9

was like 2.6 million out of the debt service that was paid

10

off. So, you know, in the future, you will be seeing

11

additional increments of increase, but not to this

12

magnitude.

13

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you.

14

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

16

Mr. Victorino?

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.

18

And thank you, Mr. Eng, for your opening comments.

19

And I too would appreciate one copy. That way, it will be

20

easier to follow. Yeah? I'm not as quick taking notes as

21

some other people. The question I have for you, sir, is

22

right now the capacity that you were talking about earlier

23

or the production levels with some of our aquifers are

24

reaching, and the mention about Wailea and -- and the use

25

of -- the cutback in Wailea, especially many of the hotels
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down there.

2

The vast majority -- well, first of all, the golf

3

courses uses brackish water wells? They do not use -- they

4

are not on the County system. That is correct, right?
MR. ENG: Yeah.

5
6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And secondly, many

7

of them are trying to now add systems to their properties to

8

use some of that same water, that brackish water. I was

9

told some of the properties are working on that. Isn't that

10

correct?

11

MR. ENG: Yeah, I'm not familiar with that.

12

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Anyhow, I -- I've

13

been told they was trying to work on some of that too, to --

14

to cut down the use of potable water, especially for

15

landscaping.
MR. ENG: Uh huh.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Most importantly right

18

now, when you're talking about the development of sources,

19

in Central Maui, we -- we know where -- where most of the

20

sources are and, you know, what is Waikapu and Maui Lani and

21

all those that may come on by the end of the year, maybe

22

early next year. The sources are here and we just need

23

to -- one of the biggest thing the USGS has said is spread

24

out the pumping so we're not really over-stressing the

25

system.

Isn't that correct?
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MR. ENG: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So just so there's

3

clarification for Central.

4

hand, really needs to develop storage, more storage, and

5

more groundwater sources.

6

for that particular system.

7
8

The Upcountry, on the other

I mean, this is really critical
Isn't that correct?

MR. ENG: Member Victorino -- Victorino, Upcountry
does have some challenges, especially regarding the East

9 Maui Watershed -10

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.

11

MR. ENG: -- issues. Again, right now, we're just

12

trying to fight to preserve what we have. But groundwater

13

is a direction we have to go. You know, large water, raw

14

water storage obviously. But even Central does have its

15

issues. Again, don't get me wrong, but the replacement

16

wells that we're constructing doesn't really give us any new

17

water. It replaces Shaft 33. But we are exploring another

18

aquifer. We're hoping there'll be a favorable decision on

19

the Na Wai Eha contested case hearing that will allow us to

20

proceed with the Waiale surface water treatment plant. So

21

there are a lot of unknowns -- unknowns there, but we are

22

trying to go forward.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I guess the last
question I have, Chair, for the Department.
With what we've read in the last two or three
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days -- in fact, late last week, where HC&S is going to

2

experiment and work towards renewable cane -- in other

3

words, for energy purposes, not so much for sugar

4

production. Has any discussions been -- and I guess maybe

5

it's too early. But has any discussions been made with them

6

as far as the usage of water? Because I understand that

7

type of cane would be less -- less water needs to be given

8

to that type of crop because it's a different entity. But

9

have you had any discussions with them?
MR. ENG: No, I haven't.

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I'd be curious

12

then once, Mr. Chair, when we -- we get further down the

13

line some discussion between the Department and -- and HC&S

14

and A&B to find out what the probable cha -- changes could

15

be with East Maui and all of this other issues. This could

16

be somewhere everyone win/win and not really anyone lose,

17

especially the people of Maui County. Yeah? So thank you,

18

Mr. Eng.

19

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

21

Questions in regards to the waterline replacement,

22

I -- I'm sure the Department is looking at the long-term

23

type of replacement project; meaning that every year, we

24

budget X amount just to do that.

25

MR. ENG: Mr. Chairman, we try to. You know, we
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only have so much cash that we have available. And those

2

type of projects have been CIP cash funded projects. So

3

again, this year has been difficult. But the plan would be

4

to appropriate enough money, a significant sum of money so

5

we can go forward with the significant project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Is there like Federal

6
7

monies in regards to replacing of old water lines because of

8

maybe EPA standards?

9

MR. ENG: Yes. In fact, we had two of our three
The Vineyard

10

ARRA projects for waterline replacements.

11

Street replacement recently and on South Kihei Road is

12

currently being completed (inaudible) project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So we're going to

13
14

continue try to get some Federal monies?
MR. ENG: Oh, yes. Yes, we are.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I hope so. On your collections,

16
17

are you up to date?

18

MR. ENG: I'll have Ms. Perdido respond to that.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.

20

MS. PERDIDO: You mean the collections for water

21

accounts?

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, water services.

23

MS. PERDIDO: Yes. Well, we to try to be. We have

24

our procedures that we go through for locking meters, you

25

know, for delinquent accounts and everything. But, you
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know, we've been hit with delinquencies now and trying to
work with customers to get bills paid. So --

3
4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. How do you work with the
foreclosures?
MS. PERDIDO: That we're -- we're trying to get --

5
6

a lot of them, at least if they're current, it's not too

7

bad. And then a lot of times, they'll come in -- and to

8

keep the meter, they'll want to pay -- you know, will pay

9

for it to keep the meter there. But we just had a meeting

10

with Ed Kushi regarding foreclosures, bankruptcies, and all

11

that, those different items right now. But we -- it is a

12

big challenge right on the collections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what amount are we looking

13
14

at?

15

MS. PERDIDO: Oh, I don't have a percentage in

16

front of me. But I know for Fiscal Year '09 -- or, you

17

know, the write-offs actually for this Fiscal Year 2010, was

18

one of the higher amounts than we've written on in the past

19

years. And it was like $25,000, which is very small

20

compared to the overall revenues that we do collect. But we

21

do send them to collections after a certain amount of time.

22

We have our set procedures that we go through for

23

collections.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

25

Okay. Members, we'll continue on with the
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Department-wide expenses. And we can start off on the -page 19-7.

3

Mr. Nishiki?

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. You know, I

I

5

I kind of want to give, Jeff, just because of what

6

Mr. Victorino said this morning. And -- and it kind of

7

planted a seed in regards to this whole thing, Jeff, with

8

biofields and HC&S going into it. Now, our -- our -- our

9

dear senator, thank to him -- thanks to him, he's going to

10

get money. And I would think that we need to use his

11

resource in any way that we can.

12

Now, we also know that -- I don't know the exact

13

million gallons of water that is now being injected from the

14

Kahului Treatment Plant, okay. But if we could make a --

15

a -- a move to ask for the Federal funding to say, hey, you

16

know, water's a real concern. The plantation has really

17

been reluctant and -- and -- and -- and our cost to

18

construct any kind of reuse line to take up to those fields

19

up there. We could certainly, Jeffrey, try to get the

20

Federal Government's help into getting this line out to go

21

from our plant and not inject all those water -- water --

22

because the Federal Government is coming down heavy on us

23

about injection wells -- and use that water to feed for the

24

biofields.

25

Maybe Jeffrey, in his abilities, can then negotiate
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with HC&S to open up whatever water we swap for their

2

irrigation needs and get that for the County needs and not

3

have to pay a penny for it.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I mean, you know, if the

6

Federal Government can give HC&S and try to keep that

7

plantation from folding, surely this may be a -- a good way

8

to get Federal funds to get that important resource that

9

they need for biofields, which is water; but for us, getting

10

us off the hook from of the Federal Government. So I think

11

our dear senators might want to hook into helping us in that

12

manner also.

13
14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for the comment,
Mr. Nishiki. That's a very good idea.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's a real win-win.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and maybe it's a challenge

17

for the Administration to move forward on trying to see if

18

we can get some Federal funding to do just that. I think

19

there's an opportunity to utilize one of those existing

20

lines that was replaced to provide that kind of relief. But

21

it's going to cost this County upwards of $20 million just

22

to ret -- retrofit the County treatment plant.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, so good idea. So we can

25

send something to Administration in regards to looking into
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what you just said. Not only for Kahului, but also for

2

Kihei, extending the line north and south of the treatment

3

plant.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It would be a real win-win

5

for us, you know. You know, and I -- and I appreciate us in

6

trying to save that plantation. But why not save Maui

7

County also?

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yep.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know?

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

13

Okay. Members, 19-7. The first item we're going

14

to review is the water insurance expense. The request is

15

$475,000, just about the middle of the page.

16

Mr. Victorino, you have any questions?

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

18

Mr. Eng, would you explain that, what that

19

insurance fund does? Is that just to pay insurance?

20

MR. ENG: I'll let Holly respond.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Holly. Thank you.

22

MS. PERDIDO: Our insurance budget is what we have

23

to pay back to the County. So this goes right back to the

24

County. Risk Management charges us our percentage for the

25

insurance for all our property and everything.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So this is a

reimbursement back to the County?
MS. PERDIDO: Correct.

4
5
6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Risk Management
Department?
MS. PERDIDO: Correct.

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

9

Member Mateo?

10

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. I'd like to follow

15
16

up with Ms. Perdido.
So do you hold money in an account to cover

17

insurance, and then reimburse whatever fund it comes from?

18

Or how does this work?

19

MS. PERDIDO: No. Risk Management bills us once a

20

year for the amount. And the other charges that we get

21

claims from, from John Mullens, who is risk managers -- what

22

do you call it? Claims adjusters. Whatever monies that we

23

have to spend out on that, we have an account under the

24

Director's budget for claims and adjustments that we pay out

25

the small claims with. But everything comes through Risk
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Management.

2
3

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. So when you repay
Risk Management, do you know where that money goes?

4
5

MS. PERDIDO: I would imagine to the General Fund.
Correct?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Maybe Budget Director, if

6
7

you could help?

8
9

MR. PABLO: Yeah, this goes into the General Fund.
What happens is all of these type of expenses is paid by the

10

County, the Finance Department. And then during the budget

11

preparation, those amounts are -- are allocated to the

12

various Special Revenue Funds.
So, for example, with -- with the insurance, the

13
14

Finance Risk Management section takes -- takes -- takes care

15

of the insurance for the County. And then during the budget

16

preparation, they'll work with each department on what their

17

share is.

18
19

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. As far as a
reimbursement?

20

MR. PABLO: That's right.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you,

22
23
24
25

Department-MR. PABLO: Everything is paid at the County by the
Finance Department -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
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MR. PABLO: -- and then they get reimbursed by the

Special Revenue Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Thank you,

4

Department and Budget Director.

5

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?

7

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

The next one is the water employee fringe-- water

16

overhead charges. Ms. Perdido, if you could explain that.

17

MS. PERDIDO: Okay. Basically, that's a charge

18

that the County charges us for the overhead. It's an amount

19

that every year -- if you notice the whole top portion up

20

there, except for refund for main line, is all a

21

reimbursement to the County for the Social Security -- the

22

FICA, the health fund, retirement system charges, et cetera.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

24

Members, any questions? Seeing none. Okay, same

25

thing with the employer fringe benefits, then. Okay.
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We'll go down to water refund for main line

expansion. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think we've talked

4

about this many times. But, Mr. Eng, just so the public

5

understands about what that does, if you don't mind. We had

6

much discussion during our Committee meeting. So just so

7

the public can understand what that main line extension

8

refund does and how it works?

9
10

MR. ENG: Thank you, Member Victorino.
You know, in our subdivision rules where this is

11

found, when a party wants -- needs water service and needs

12

to extend the waterline to their property from the closest

13

point of adequacy on the County system, then they will

14

design and construct and install the waterline. And we have

15

a reimbursement methodology. And then, what, 50 percent

16

over five years has been their refund? I think we made some

17

changes, modifications to that -- no, we haven't. Okay.

18

And so this is basically what we budget for.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
MR. ENG: Thank you.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?

23

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

4

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

6

(Silence.)

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I -- I think we

12

heard about debt services. But our debt service is $5.5

13

million.

14

So Mr. Victorino, any questions on that?

15

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

17

Member Mateo?

18

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member

24
25

Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Baisa?

2 Member Molina?
3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Last one is other

5

employment benefits. Members, any questions to that?

6

Seeing none, thank you. That completes the

7

Administration area.

So before we go into operations, Chair

8

is going to call for a ten-minute recess. We'll reconvene

9

at 10:30. And when we get back, we'll go to the first

10

program, which is the water treatment plant operations. And

11

this is from the water supply fund. So, Members, this

12

meeting is in recess until 10:30.

13

RECESS:

10:20 a.m.

14

RECONVENE:

10:32 a.m.

15
16
17

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

...(gavel)... The Budget and

Finance Committee Meeting is now reconvened.
Members, at this time, we're going to review the

18

water treatment plant operations. And I'd like to

19

reintroduce again Jeff Eng.

20

MR. ENG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And at this

21

time, I'd like to introduce to you Paul Seitz, division head

22

of our Water Treatment Plant Operations Program. He'll give

23

you a brief overview of his operations and he'll respond to

24

any of your questions.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MR. ENG: Thank you.
MR. SEITZ: Good morning, Chair, Members. My name

3

is Paul Seitz. We currently operate six surface water

4

treatment plants. There are three Upcountry. There's one

5

in Olinda, there's one at Piiholo, and there's one at

6

Kamole. We have one in the Central Valley at the Iao Tank

7

site. And we have two in West Maui; one in Lahaina and one

8

at Mahinahina.

9

There's four of these treatment plants that are the

10

micro-filtration plants, and there are two that are

11

conventional plants. Our facilities operate seven days a

12

week. No holidays for us. The plants are manned eight

13

hours a day. And they are unmanned for 16 hours of the day

14

on standby. All of our people must be certified by the

15

State of Hawaii. And a recent major accomplishments are the

16

upgrade of the Lahaina Treatment Plant, the Olinda Treatment

17

Plant and the Kamole Treatment Plant. And I might point out

18

that out of my team was the team of the year for the County

19

this past year, and we're very proud of that.

20

The other recent accomplishments that we've had is

21

we have just recently cleaned and repaired the 20 million

22

gallon reservoir at Mahinahina, and we just -- the

23

refurbishment of the four filters at that plant at the same

24

time. So I will be available for any questions.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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Members, turn to page 21-15 on your Program, and at

19-23 on your Details.

3

So at this time, Mr. Victorino, questions?

4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thanks -- Thank you,

5
6

Chair.
And thank you, Mr. Seitz, for that update. We do

7

appreciate it. Quickly, on the Upcountry, you mentioned two

8

of the three had upgrades and -- and -- and changes.

9

Kamole, I'm very interested. What was done at Kamole?

10

Because I think that was -- money was set aside for

11

expansion. So is this part of the expansion plan, or is

12

this just a big upgrade?

13

MR. SEITZ: No. Actually, what we did is we took

14

the eight filters that we had in place and we changed the

15

membranes out and the backwash techniques. So by doing

16

that, the plant capacity was actually increased. So -- but

17

it was done within the same footprint.

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So what was the

19

capacity change? How much more can we expect to -- if we

20

need to pull out?

21

MR. SEITZ: Okay. The -- that's kind of a --

22

that's kind of an obscure figure because it depends on the

23

amount of water that's in the ditch.

24

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

25

MR. SEITZ: The maximum capacity that those filters
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legally can put out is just a hair under 10 million gallons
now.

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

4

MR. SEITZ: Okay. But there are other constraints.

5

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I -- and I

6

understand. But I just wanted to know what the capacity of

7

that. Because wasn't the old capacity five or six, the old

8

filter system?

9
10

MR. SEITZ: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So -- so by

11

changing this filtration system, we now have the capacity to

12

go somewhere about eight or nine, under ten, if we had the

13

water available, obviously?

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

MR. SEITZ: If the water is available and if the
water quality is acceptable.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. And you
mentioned Mahinahina?
MR. SEITZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The upgrade there, what
was done -- what was done with the upgrade in Mahinahina?
MR. SEITZ: Okay. That actually wasn't an upgrade

22

we -- we took the filters. They are a mixed-media filter.

23

And that media hadn't been changed since that plant was

24

actually put in service back in 1998. So that was taken out

25

and changed with the new media.
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that --

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then at

MR. SEITZ: And at the same time, we took the
reservoir down and we cleaned it and repaired it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So between those

5
6

two, what does that do for the Lahaina area as far as

7

capacity?

8
9
10
11

MR. SEITZ: It makes no change.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No change, okay. I just
wanted to understand that.
And lastly, of all of your positions that you have

12

under Water Treatment Plant Operations, right -- that's what

13

we're looking at, Mr. Chair. Right?

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.

15

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Of all these positions --

16

and I have a sheet here that says how many is vacant. But

17

how many truly vacant positions do you have in this

18

Department only?

19

MR. SEITZ: Okay. Okay. We have, right now, I

20

have an assistant, which is WW-20801, that is vacant. We

21

are scheduling the interviews for that position right now.

22

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

23

MR. SEITZ: I have a Water Treatment Plant

24

Operations and Maintenance -- the supervisor, which is

25

WW-201. That is vacant. We're kind of holding off on that
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one until we hire the -- yeah. The 281 position -- the
assistant.

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.

4

MR. SEITZ: In the East District, we have one Grade

5

II, which is W-215. We are recruiting. And on the west

6

side, we have a Grade IV, which is 160. That -- you

7

actually may not have that one.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, it's not in there.

9

MR. SEITZ: The incumbent there resigned on the 8th

10

of this month. So that's just on a newly vacant.

11

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

12

MR. SEITZ: And then we have an assistant, the

13

Water Treatment Plant Operator. And that position, the

14

applicant is in the process of taking the physical at this

15

time.

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

17

MR. SEITZ: So those are my vacancies.

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you,

19

Mr. Seitz. And I have some other questions. But if the

20

other Members don't ask them, I'll ask -- ask them.

21

yield to my colleagues.

22

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

24
25

I'll

Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you.
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And I want to get some information on their -- on

2

their premiums pay in terms of the current versus what is

3

being projected?

4

MR. SEITZ: Okay, our premium pay. As I had

5

mentioned, our treatment plants are staffed eight hours a

6

day and are unmanned the 16 hours a day. By regulation, we

7

have to have a standby operator for each facility. And then

8

also by regulation, we have to have a standby operator the

9

secondary standby operator, okay. That is under the surface

10

water treatment rule. So that makes up the bulk of the

11

premium pay.

12

When we have a plant that runs into a -- the water

13

quality issue, it will dial the operator and the operator

14

will have to come in and maintain that problem. So that's

15

basically the basis of our standby and the overtime.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Do you know what your current

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

is?
MR. SEITZ: The current one right now is
$60,344.09.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And with only a few months away
from this current Fiscal Year -MR. SEITZ: Okay. Yeah, so it's about 140 total is
what we have left.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, okay. Okay. And I
guess -- I guess you're telling me that there's no getting
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away from the projected 200,000 that's being projected for
premium pay at this point?

3

MR. SEITZ: Not at -- not at this point. Again, if

4

it rains and there's water quality issues, they're mandated

5

to come out or else we get a violation.

6

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So one of your goals and

7

objectives, the first bullet point when you say "to

8

economically produce the highest quality potable water," the

9

economically produce is -- just means your ability to get

10

the water done and not the County's ability to pay?

11

MR. SEITZ: No. No, not necessarily. Our water

12

treatment plants, especially the Upcountry ones, are located

13

at the various spots on the mountain. And when we can

14

produce water at a higher point on the mountain, then that

15

means I can bring water downhill. Okay? When I bring water

16

downhill, then we don't incur the pumping cost.
Okay. Now, when the water is not available and

17
18

I've got to pump it uphill, then obviously that's going to

19

cost a lot more. So we always look at all of our plants and

20

we try to come up with, okay, where is the most economical

21

point for us to produce water? And so that's always our

22

priority.

23

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So electricity is

24

something that you're looking at in terms of trying -- I

25

mean -- well, it's an operational question.

I'll pass it
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until we get to operations before I get the hammer thrown at
me. Thank you.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

7

Mr. Seitz, I wanted to ask in the interest of

8

trying to standardize infrastructure and equipment,

9

throughout your water treatment facilities, are your

10

infrastructure, as far as equipment, parts interchangeable?

11

MR. SEITZ: Yes, they are.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

13

MR. SEITZ: That goes for the micro-filtration

14

plants. The other plants pretty much stand alone.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so you did that

15
16

with

17

interchangeable parts and equipment?

with the intent of -- so that there would be

18

MR. SEITZ: Yes, we did.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

20

MR. SEITZ: Actually, on the last upgrade, the

21

the manufacturer came up with some different parts.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

23

MR. SEITZ: So we changed them so they would be

24
25

standardized.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good.
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MR. SEITZ: So we'd only have to keep one set of

spares.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I congratulate you for

4

doing that. You know, I've been asking the other

5

departments to consider that too.

6

As far as your standby -- or your premium pay,

7

which I believe Council Chair Mateo was asking about. Your

8

standby pay, meaning that those people make themselves

9

available should they be needed, what is the rate for the

10
11
12
13
14
15

standby pay?
MR. SEITZ: The current UPW rate -- I don't know
right off the top of my head. It's $2.00 an hour.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: $2.00 an hour more than
their standard rate?
MR. SEITZ: No, they get paid $2.00 an hour for

16

every hour that they're on standby. And then they get paid

17

overtime when they come in.

18
19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. And that's
by the labor agreement?
MR. SEITZ: Yes, the UPW contract.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right, Bargaining Unit

22

Contract. Okay. Getting back little bit on your

23

infrastructure and equipment and stuff. How are you able to

24

do that -- because a lot of times what we run into in trying

25

to standardize parts and equipment is procurement laws and
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requirements. So how were you able to standardize your
equipment?
MR. SEITZ: Basically, the way we did it is we did

4

sole source out years ago. And when you pick a process, you

5

kind of get married to it. So by doing that, we've been

6

able to standardize everything.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Thank

8

you for doing that, Mr. Seitz. That makes it, I think,

9

better for the County in -- always.

10

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

12

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

13

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.

14

I just wanted to ask a question because I had a

15

farmer who called concerning the -- the water at Olinda. So

16

I'm looking at your program description here, you take care

17

of the Olinda micro-filtration facilities. And the -- the

18

concern was that the -- the system they're under as farmers

19

has water that is coming to them now that is impacting their

20

crops. So how does -- how does that all figure in when

21

you're trying to in your goals come out with the highest

22

quality water, but then the water in Olinda is having a

23

impact on the farm -- farmer and their crops?

24
25

MR. SEITZ: Okay. First of all, I don't understand
what you mean by impact on the crop.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, the water

2

quality is having an impact on the -- the vegetable crops

3

that are being farmed.

4

affecting the crops that's coming from their water. Is that

5

two different systems we're talking about?

6

So there's something that's

MR. SEITZ: There is a dual system up there for the

7

ag. I don't believe it's in much use. I'm sure you -- you

8

know, heard about it in the past with the State. They've

9

spent a lot of money on that dual system up there. Without

10

knowing the specifics, I really have a hard time commenting

11

on it.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then I -- I

13

would like to follow up with -- with that, only because

14

they're using water -- the Olinda people living in Olinda

15

right now that are farming, where are they getting their

16

water from?

17

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Potable water.

18

MR. SEITZ: Yeah, I -- I would assume it would be

19
20

the potable water system.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And is there

21

something where the potable water system that you are

22

treating that needs this micro-filtration? Is -- what --

23

what's happening with that? Are you putting chemicals in

24

that system?

25

MR. SEITZ: The only chemicals that we would be
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putting in the finished water would be the chlorine or the

2

chloramines. And that's mandated by the Federal Government.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'll -- I'll

4

get more specifics on that and then bring it to your

5

attention. But that would be my only question in this

6

program area.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

8

Member Johnson?

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

11

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. The big question I had

12

was answered by Mr. Seitz in regards to capacity to treat

13

more water. Thank you.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

Member Molina?

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.

17

Just one question for you, Mr. Seitz. Regarding

18

your objectives on 21-15 in the program budget. For the

19

Members information, the third bullet under objectives

20

Fiscal Year 2011, it states, "Optimize and maintain the

21

facilities electrical equipment and switch gear for the most

22

efficient use of electrical energy."

23

Could you explain that further?

24

MR. SEITZ: Yes. What we've just done is we've

25

just entered into some contracts with the TEG people. And
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what they do is they come in on an annual basis, and they

2

maintain all of our -- the high-voltage switch gears, our

3

motors, our motor control centers. They monitor them for

4

the thermal, the infrared. And by doing that, if there's

5

going to be any sort of a failure, then we can pick it up

6

before the failure actually happens.
And the way this program is actually set up is that

7
8

once we do this and they monitor it, if anything breaks,

9

they will be responsible for the replacing of the motors,

10

the switch gear or, you know, any component like that. So

11

it's a preventative maintenance program is basically what it

12

is.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And I -- I appreciate

14

the fact that you are very mindful of the electrical cost.

15

I know Maui Electric is very appreciative of the Water

16

Department being their number one customer. And, you know,

17

I -- has there been any thought about renewable ener-- I

18

don't know. Is there any room here in this objective for

19

renewable energy on the water treatment plants? You know,

20

photovoltaic, solar panels, et cetera? Because this is --

21

the renewable energy has been made a high priority of this

22

Administration, which I know is a favorite department of

23

Mr. Mateo. Any thoughts on that, Mr. Seitz?

24
25

MR. SEITZ: We have looked at some things. The
issue with our type of operation is the intermittent power.
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And our power requirements are so high, a lot of times it's

2

high voltage, the 4160 volts. And for something like

3

windmill or the photovoltaic or something like that, unless

4

we put up a couple windmills like they have up at Keawa,

5

then it's really not going to impact us that much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Yeah, I was just

6
7
8
9

wondering.
Because I notice you're looking ahead at the B
Account, Mr. Chairman, they're projecting 2.6 million for

10

electricity costs. And I was just curious, when I looked at

11

the objective where it said efficient use of electrical

12

energy, that's where I kind of assumed maybe possibly less

13

costs for electricity. But being that the demands that the

14

renewable energy -- you cannot meet that particular demand

15

as it relates to your water treatment operation?

16

MR. SEITZ: Yeah. Just as a point of interest, the

17

Kamole Treatment Plant is the largest single account that

18

Maui Electric has.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for that info.

20

Thank you, Chairman.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Dovetailing on

22
23

Mr. Molina's question, any chance of hydro?
MR. SEITZ: Again, the issues with the hydro is

24

it's not a constant flow.

It's and on again/off again.

25

There are some possibilities -- and I believe they have
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looked at them for some small inline hydros at a few places.

2

But as far as using it for the operational power for the

3

plants, again, it's -- it's so minuscule, it's probably --

4

it's probably going to cost you more to do it than you're

5

going to save out of it.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

7

Okay. Members, we'll go to the B Account.

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

10

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think we just covered

11

the electricity. Okay. We got that one pretty much wired.

12

No, I think most of it is pretty flat. In fact, a little

13

bit decreased.

14

Mr. Chairman.

So no, no questions at this time,

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

16

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, with reluctance, I

17

have no questions at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So I can't throw the hammer at

18
19

you?

20

Mr. Nishiki?

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

CAMMIE GILLETT, RPR, CSR
(808) 244-DEPO
70

1

4/12/10 BF

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now where we going?

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it. There is no

10

equipment requests.

11

Thank you, Mr. Seitz.

12

MR. SEITZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next is the Field Operations

13
14

Program.
MR. ENG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. At this time,

15
16

I'd like to call down Bobby Vida, division head of our Field

17

Operations. And he can give you a brief overview of this

18

area.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members on the Details 19-27.

20

MR. VIDA: Good morning, Members. My name is Bobby

21

Vida, the Field Operations Division Chief of Field

22

Operations.

23

baseyards throughout Maui and Molokai.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

25

Mr. Victorino?

I'm responsible for 83 employees, five
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2

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
Mr. Vida, since we started on the A Account -- and

3

I do have again the -- what was the latest employment and

4

vacancy count. But can you tell me -- because I've been

5

seeing now that there are different numbers -- what is your

6

vacancy count as far as the Field Division is concerned?

7

MR. VIDA: Right now, I have nine vacant positions.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nine. This one has

9

seven. Okay. So can you tell me of the nine, which would

10

be -- if there's any possibility or there are there any

11

positions that you would consider that could be frozen or --

12

or not filled? Or all these nine need to be filled?
MR. VIDA: I believe the Field Operations, my

13
14

assistant is frozen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see. Of all the nine,

15
16

just that one position?
MR. VIDA: Yes.

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And as far as

18
19

hiring, right now, not a major problem in finding adequate

20

and competent people to fill these positions? Because I

21

know one time, you guys were having a hard time. Yeah?

22

MR. VIDA: Right now, we have three supervisor

23

positions vacant. That would be Molokai, Hana and Makawao

24

Baseyard.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And so those --
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those three, you guys are looking right now at the present
time?

3

MR. VIDA: Yes.

4
5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, no. I think that's
pretty satisfactory. Thank you very much.

6

Thank you, Mr. Vida.

7

MR. VIDA: Thank you.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Before I call on

9

Mr. Mateo, House Bill 2598 has been deferred by the

10

Committee.

11

Member Mateo?

12

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So I'm glad I never went.

13

Mr. Vida, good morning. Can you just give me

14

information on your premium pay, it's current and what

15

you're projecting for Fiscal Year '11?

16

MS. PERDIDO: Bobby asked me to answer this one for

17

him. Currently, I think from the latest report, we had

18

about 215 -- about 350,000 to date on his overtime standby.

19

And then I think his budget is for 600.

20

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And because there's only

21

a few more months left in this Fiscal Year and we're running

22

at 350,000 right now -- about 351 right now -- is the

23

600,000 a little too high? Can that be reduced?

24
25

MR. VIDA: I think the -- overall, we're going to
go probably over that.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So within the next couple

of months, we're going to exceed the $600,000?
MR. VIDA: Yes. Whats happening is I have a

4

working foreman out in Hana that he is retiring the end of

5

this month. So I'm going to have to be sending men out

6

daily to cover him in Hana.

7

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Do you know -- maybe -- maybe

8

Ms. Holly can answer what the actual was in 0 -- you have

9

the totals for '09?

10

MS. PERDIDO:

11

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you.

12

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

16

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

17

Good morning, Mr. Vida. Just following up on the

'09 came in at about 523,000.

18

vacancies for the three supervisory positions.

19

due mostly to retirements or promotions?

20
21

These are

MR. VIDA: One would be considered retire. The
only one was like disciplinary actions.

22

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And the third?

23

MR. VIDA: Right now, there's no person that

24
25

qualifies there.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it's vacant while you
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look for a qualified person?

2
3

MR. VIDA: We're running the person on temporary
assignment until he qualifies to be a supervisor.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And -- and the Hana
one is due to retirement?
MR. VIDA: Yes.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so you're

7
8

looking for a replacement for that too?
MR. VIDA: I'm looking for a working foreman and a

9
10

supervisor.

11
12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right okay thank you,
Mr. Vida.

13

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member

15
16

Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. I'm just

17

checking. But the adjustments are reflected in this

18

handout, then? This is what you hand out? So there would

19

be a change in --

20
21
22
23

MR. PABLO: Yes, the furlough amount has been
changed to reflect -- reflect 4.6 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that's the only
difference between --

24

MR. PABLO: That's correct.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then no -- no
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questions.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

3

Member Johnson?

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions on the money.

7

But on the performance measures on 2117, right in the

8

middle, we have three performance measures. The first one

9

is good. We're flushing hydrants, which we understand why.

10

Even though we get a lot of calls about that and people

11

cannot understand why we have money -- water running down

12

the road. But, you know, we understand that.

13

The number of consumer complaints is interesting.

14

I notice you're really jacking that up for Fiscal Year '11.

15

Is there a reason? You're going from 2500 this year to 2900

16

next year. Are we expecting trouble, or is that just more

17

realistic?

18

MR. VIDA: I think it's more realistic.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.

20

And then, of course, I did want to comment on the third

21

performance measure. And it was mentioned earlier, main

22

line replacement in feet were going from 9,000 to 10,560.

23

And we're really grateful for that because we got to replace

24

those lines.

25

Thank you.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Yeah,

3

my question was along the same lines as Member Baisa. But

4

that was answered. And I just wanted to -- actually, if

5

anything, compliment Mr. Vida. You know, myself and I think

6

a neighbor of mine in my subdivision, we had some water

7

repairs that needed to be done. This was about a year ago.

8

And your personnel was very professional. And I just wanted

9

to compliment you folks on how you deal with your personal

10

personnel on customer service. Because your personnel is so

11

visible to the public, that's so important.

12

wanted to pass out compliments. And I appreciate all the

13

hard work you and your division have done. Thank you.

So I just

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair. Chair, I have one

16

more question.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Go ahead.

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I was waiting. In

19

'09, Bobby, we had standby pay. And then I notice none

20

before and none after. Is that standby pay being combined

21

with the premium pay, or that's no longer necessary?

22

Because in '09, you had an actual $129,991 in standby pay.

23

MR. VIDA: It's combined -- it's combined now.

24

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's combined now?

25

MR. VIDA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Because now, if

2

you add the two together, I can see where 600,000 may not be

3

sufficient.

4

and this is 600 and almost 52 -- you know, 652 in 0 -- in

5

premium pay, if you combined the two. Thank you.

6
7

Because both years now 644, the year before,

Thank you, Chair, for the -- for allowing me to add
that clarification.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We go to the B Account.

9

Mr. Molina, start from you, 19-30?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's good to see there's a

11

reduction in rentals, you know. Other than that, no other

12

questions, Chairman.

Thank you.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

14

Member Baisa?

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

19

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, it looks like an exact

22

flat budget. So no questions at this time.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

CAMMIE GILLETT, RPR, CSR
(808) 244-DEPO
78

1

4/12/10 BF

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions at this

4

time.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the operation

6

has no -- page 19-32, equipment. Maybe, Jeff Eng, if you

7

can answer just that one, that $80,000 replaced number CM

8

1648 and CM 1623.

9

MR. VIDA: Yes. This is two 1999 model trucks,

10

duallies. And we just had repairs done on it. And then

11

just like the transmission repair would be like $3,500.

12

trucks needs to be replaced.

13
14

The

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So how old is that truck? 19 -MR. VIDA:

'99.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: 1999. Okay. Thank you.

16

Mr. Victorino?

17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

23

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Something interesting,

6

Mr. Nishiki?
Okay. Thank you, Mr. Vida, for your attendance

7
8

here this morning. Appreciate it.

9

Okay. The next program is the Plant Operations

10

Program. Members, on your Program, it's 21-19 and 19-33 on

11

Details.

12

MR. ENG: And, Mr. Chairman, at this time I'd like

13

to ask the Chief of the Plant Operations Division, Joe

14

Mendonca to come up here. Thank you.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Opening comments, if you have.

16

MR. MENDONCA: Yes.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

18

MR. MENDONCA: Good morning, everyone.

19

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.

20

MR. MENDONCA: My name is Joe Mendonca. Including

21

myself, the Plant Operations Division has 32 employees.

22

Division is comprised of five sections: Water quality,

23

backflow prevention, mechanical, electrical, and

24

electronics.

25

The

As an overview, the mechanical, electrical and
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electronic sections operate and maintain approximately 35

2

well sites and their associated water -- disinfection

3

systems, 103 booster pumps and 132 Scader -- Scada remote

4

nodes.

5

maintaining the electrical and process control

6

instrumentation for six water treatment plants.

Additionally, the responsibilities extend to

The Water Quality Section tests and ensures that

7
8

the County's drinking water meets EPA standards for

9

approximately 35,000 services.

The backflow section tests

10

new construction back -- backflows, performs daily

11

investigations, and is responsible for making sure that

12

approximately 2,000 backflow devices are regularly tested to

13

meet compliance parameters.

14

In working closely with our engineers, we are

15

involved in identifying and initiating projects to improve

16

the relia -- reliability of our water system. Notable

17

projects are -- and in some form of design or construction

18

would include the Waihee Wells, electrical renovation, which

19

includes a five -- 1500k -- kilowatt generator. These wells

20

have a capacity of 13 million gallons a day, and is one of

21

the Department's largest production facilities.

22

operations in progress includes the Paia Country Club, Skill

23

Village, Kula Kai, Lower Kula -- Lower Kimo, Napili B,

24

Napili C, Maui Meadows and the Kamole High Lift Booster Pump

25

Station.

Other
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With that -- with that said, I'll turn over any

questions to the Chair and this body.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

4

Mr. Victorino, on the A Account on 19-33,

5

questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Again, the same

6
7

question, you know, for your Division. Vacancies that, you

8

know, show up now?
MR. MENDONCA: Yeah. Last year, we had eight

9
10

vacancies. And this year, we have two. So we moved one

11

position from an electrician up to an electronics

12

technician. And the other one is a laboratory tech.

13

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The other question I had

14

for you is your laboratory, the laboratory technicians that

15

are under you, you show two laboratory technicians and one

16

cross -- backflow cross checker. So this one backflow --

17

oh, I'm sorry. You got two. I'm sorry. I beg your pardon,

18

you got two. These two, along with the two lab, are able to

19

cover all these areas and all of the checking that has to be

20

done for EPA and the State Health Department?

21
22

MR. MENDONCA: That is correct. Yes, we have
enough personnel for that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Enough personnel for

23
24
25

that?
MR. MENDONCA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, very good. Thank

you.

3

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
Mr. Mateo?

5
6

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you.

7

Mr. Mendonca, good morning. Just to follow up

8

again, my interest is in premium pay. With the figures that

9

was provided to us, premium pay for your division currently

10

comes out to almost $59,000. And it's being projected for

11

140,000 in premium paid. There's only a few more months

12

left in the current fiscal year. Can you tell me if there

13

is going to be a savings in that projection? Because '09 --

14

and if -- if this is an actual total expended was just a

15

little over 57,000?

16

MR. MENDONCA: Right.

17

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So can you provide me with some

18

kind of information?

19

MR. MENDONCA: Well, we've been lucky. And we've

20

haven't -- we've improved our standby and our call-outs to

21

minimize any impact on the dollar figure. In December 2007,

22

we made some changes. And we improved that a lot since

23

then. So I -- we're way below our projected budget at this

24

point.

25

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: It is -- is that something based
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on luck, or is that something that the Department planned

2

for so that we can -- we can anticipate this continued

3

saving?

4

MR. MENDONCA: Both. And we changed the way we

5

handled our call-outs. And at one point, we had a different

6

standby captain. And now we have a standby captain

7

that's -- in our division that knows more about the system.

8

And so that person can actually analyze and determine if we

9

need to call out the personnel. So our call-outs, I think

10
11

we're -- we're down. We're less than half.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Because some of this -- I

12

understand the importance of the work that's being done to

13

keep all of us quenched. But I just need to take a look at

14

premium pay. So if, in fact, '09 is an actual and the

15

projection is a little high, then there would be a little

16

cushion there where we could, if need be, lessen the cushion

17

a little bit?

18

MR. ENG: Excuse me, Council Chair Mateo.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Eng.

20

MR. ENG: If you look at Fiscal Year '09 actual,

21

actually you have to combine the 57,000 that you pointed

22

out, as well a standby.

23

actual was 104. And, again, in 2008, was 132.

It's a line below.

It's 47.

So

So --

24

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.

25

MR. ENG: We're always hoping there'll be a
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cushion. And Joe did a tremendous job in reducing his OT
and premium pay.

3

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh, yeah. Then no --

4

MR. ENG: I mean exemplary for the Department.

5

So -- and we have more work to do everywhere on that,

6

though.

Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No. It just seemed like

7
8

consistent with so many of the other departments. You know,

9

everybody's work is -- is important and needed as a

10

function, your Department even more. So in terms of us just

11

being able to take a look at where we can appreciate some

12

savings, you know, every dollar will count in this savings

13

especially now. Thank you.

14

Thank you.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

16

Member Nishiki?

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Nope.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

19

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

20

In your program, the difference between your

21

program and the Water Treatment Plant Operations Program is

22

that you deal mostly with what? Because I understand you're

23

kind of responsible for the drinking water standards.

24

Right?

25

MR. MENDONCA: That's right.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So is that just by testing

that you meet those requirements?
MR. MENDONCA: Right. But we also monitor the
surface water treatment plants water as well.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.

6

MR. MENDONCA: But basically, this division is --

7
8
9

deals primarily with groundwater.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MENDONCA: Yes.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And on page 21-19,

11

in the budget proposal under performance measures, what was

12

the reason that -- between the actual Fiscal Year 2009 and

13

the projection for Fiscal Year 2010, there was a reduction

14

of chemistry samplings to meet EPA and DOH requirements by

15

21,300? Do you have a -- a newer system, a different

16

requirement by those agencies? That's a lot of difference,

17

21,300 samplings less.

18

MR. MENDONCA: Yeah, that is a lot.

19

MR. ENG: If I may grab the mic, Member Medeiros.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

21

MR. ENG: I think -- Joe, correct me if I'm wrong.

22

During the time, we were undergoing our lab certification.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

24

MR. ENG: So I think we had to do a lot more

25

testing and quality control testing compare --
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You --

2

MR. ENG: To become certified.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You mean for '09?

4

MR. ENG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see.

5

MR. ENG: Yeah.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So you feel that in

7
8

now -- the amount of testing you're going to be doing is

9

roughly around 30,000 samplings?

10

MR. ENG: Okay. Okay.

11

MR. MENDONCA: Here, it says the number of

12

chemistry samplings.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

14

MR. MENDONCA: We -- take approximately 3,500

15

chem -- chemistry samplings a month.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: A month?

17

MR. MENDONCA: Yeah.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Wow.

19

MR. MENDONCA: So that number is a little off -- at

20
21
22
23
24
25

30,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So you think it
should be more?
MR. MENDONCA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Thank you
for that clarification.
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Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

3

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

4

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

6

Member Johnson?

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. No, just making note

12

of the four college students interns that reduction there.

13

Sorry to beat a dead horse. But I -- you know, people ask

14

us, "What's the County doing for education?" Well, here's a

15

good example of it. And it's unfortunate this is getting

16

cut.

17

I guess this is -- Mr. Director or Mr. Mendonca,

18

was this an internal decision, or was this a directive

19

basically from Administration to cut the coll -- college

20

intern program?

21

MR. ENG: Mr. Chairman and Member Molina, I -- I

22

believe this has been an Administration-wide decision.

23

was one of the -- probably the first decisions as far as any

24

cutbacks and any shortfalls. I think it really applied to

25

the current fiscal year too, we had to take some action. So

That
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as I mentioned earlier, we kind of froze the hirings of our

2

full-time equipment employees and put a freeze on the summer

3

intern hiring.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Yeah, it just
doesn't seem --

6
7

MR. ENG: But they are valuable people to have
around.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

9

MR. ENG: I mean, our division heads have really

10

counted on them to really kind of catch up with the workload

11

and backlog of work. So --

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Exactly. You know, I was
going to emphasize that value.

14

MR. ENG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They do a lot of the

15
16

little things that take up a lot of time of your personnel.
MR. ENG: Yeah, it's really efficient to have them.

17
18
19

Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. This is -- this is

20

really unfortunate. But, again, this is a good example of

21

how the County is helping education, providing these young

22

students real-life opportunities, work experiences.

23

anyway. Thank you Mr. Director.

24

Thank you, Chair.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

So
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Okay. Members, we'll go to the B Account. So

Member -- I'll start off with Member Molina.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. No questions, Chair.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

5

Member Baisa?

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, nothing to really look
at. Thank you.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

11

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So --

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: 19-35.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, I'm just looking

14

at the electric bill. So is this the second highest?

15

Is it the second highest?

16

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: In your Department?

17

MR. ENG: Oh, this is the highest, yeah. This is

18

the highest of any division, yes. Joe has the brunt of our

19

electricity expense.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So I know

21

part of your description was to try to reduce some of that.

22

So is that not reflected, then, at all in terms of you

23

looking at more efficiencies? So you're not going to make

24

those changes in the next fiscal -- fiscal year, then?

25

You're projecting the same cost?
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MR. ENG: You know, our -- our current program as

2

far as becoming for efficient with our electricity, Joe had

3

has a program over the recent years and is continuing of

4

when we place our old motors, he's going to replace them

5

with premium efficiency motors. And they have a real short

6

payback period too, like two or three years. So that's our

7

first direction as far as electricity efficiency.

8
9
10

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But none of
that is going to be reflected in the next fiscal year, then?
MR. ENG: You know, a lot of the -- when we budget

11

for Joe's division for electricity is because of a big

12

unknown of how much electricity is going to cost over the

13

next year. So as you can see, we basically budgeted at a

14

flat amount. And again, then we cross our fingers. But

15

it's just such a difficult number to budget.

16
17
18
19
20

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So currently
where -- what have you expended currently, then?
MR. ENG: I'm sorry, we don't have it handy. But
we can respond to you if you -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that I get a

21

sense of what you -- I mean, you're proposing flat or the

22

same amount. But at least you would be able to reflect some

23

of the expenses currently and making projections for the

24

current fiscal year.

25

So -- so it would be helpful, Chair, to kind of get
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a sense where that's at if that amount changes.
MR. ENG: Okay.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

5

Budget looks flat, except it's daunting to look at the

6

electricity, like Member Kaho'ohalahala had said. And, you

7

know, it's around 15 million. Their total budget is 17

8

million. So they only have 2 million for operations. The

9

rest is -- goes to the Kahului business.

It's interesting

10

how a budget can be so lopsided just to one vendor. But I

11

guess it's required to run all the pumps and equipment.

12

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

14

Member Nishiki?

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

17

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

19

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly.

20

Just for clarification, Joe. Your pumps, all the

21 pumps you mentioned -- and I think you mentioned
22

130-something pumps that run throughout the County. Right?

23

And all these pumps basically run 24/7?

24

MR. MENDONCA: No, not necessarily.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. How -- how long do
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these run, most of these pumps?

2

MR. MENDONCA: Oh, some of them run 24 hours.

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

4

MR. MENDONCA: Some of them run 16 hours.

5

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.

6

MR. MENDONCA: Some of them run two hours. So it

7
8
9

all depends on the application.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And what I'm
trying to get to between that, your Scada, and all the other

10

things that you run electricity for, you need dedicated

11

consistent power. That's very important in this? You

12

cannot have unknown factors, like wind generation or solar

13

heating, things of that nature, especially to runs pumps and

14

things of that nature. Right?

15
16
17
18
19
20
21

MR. MENDONCA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You want something that's
immediate, guaranteed and consistent?
MR. MENDONCA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If not, you burn out
these motors very rapid -- pretty rapidly?
MR. MENDONCA: Well, we have monitors that actually

22

won't let the motor run if the electrical is not correct.

23

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay.

24

Just so people understand the rat -- the rationale

25

behind this, Mr. Chair, and why it's so expensive is because
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these are systems need to be ongoing, ready to go or

2

going -- like you said, 24/7 -- because if they stops or

3

they burn out, that brings our capacity, in some cases,

4

drastically down.

5

Right, Mr. Mendonca?

6

MR. MENDONCA: That is correct.

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And I

8

appreciate that very much.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

9
10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

11

MR. MENDONCA: Let me run -- add this too. We run

12

about 2.5 million kilowatt hours a month.

13

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two point what?

14

MR. MENDONCA: 2.5 million kilowatt hours a month.

15

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's a lot of

16

kilowatts.

Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I -- I -- I've got a fast

17
18

question. The most expensive run, is it from Kamole

19

Treatment Plant to Piiholo Reservoir?

20

MR. MENDONCA: It's -- they don't run continuous.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: But that's the most expensive

22
23
24
25

one?
MR. MENDONCA: I wouldn't think so. I think the
most expensive one is Shaft 33.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Where?
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MR. MENDONCA: Shaft 33. We spend about --

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, here in Wailuku?

3

MR. MENDONCA: $125,000 a month.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

5

On page 19-37, Members, there are some equipment

6

replacements. And if you could, Mr. Mendonca, kind of

7

explain the replacement, or Director? The big ones.

8
9

MR. MENDONCA: Okay. We requested like nine
equipment -- pieces of equipment. We have laptop computers.

10

That's four -- actually, the two laptop computers, that's

11

going to replace the two laptop computers that belong to our

12

technicians. They're over four years old and out of

13

warranty. And that's one of their major tools that they use

14

continuous, almost every day.

15

are four Scada Terminals. Those are for the outer

16

districts -- Hana, Molokai, Lahaina. And there's one

17

development terminal that we'll be using at Naska baseyard.

18

Those are six years old, and they are not supported by

19

warranty.

20

The Scada Terminals, those

The thermal scanner, that's a tool that we're going

21

to start using. And that's basically for -- it's for our

22

electrical equipment. And that would enable us to determine

23

if there's any problem, any heat concentration in our

24

panels. That should speed up our maintenance and also

25

actually enhance our safety factor.
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And the truck, of course, it's just a -- it's a

2

one-ton truck that belongs to one of our mechanics. In our

3

fleet, that's the oldest vehicle that we have. The sampling

4

stations are -- will be used by the laboratory. And that

5

will help us actually control the environment that the

6

sampling tap is -- is enclosed in. Because when you

7

groundwater rules and we would like to minimize any type of

8

false positives. And the automatic flushing devices are

9

devices that are -- that flushes the lines automatically.

10

We have a flushing crew that takes care primarily of the

11

Upcountry system. And they -- between the three systems, we

12

flush approximately at a seven-week rotation. And during

13

that time, there are some spots that need more flushing than

14

that seven-week cycle. So that's where some of those

15

flushing stations are going to be staged.

16

And, of course, the -- the lab refrigerator, I

17

think is 50 or more cubic foot refrigerator. It's been in

18

the lab since day one. And that's a 1984. So being

19

proactive, we want to replace that refrigerator. And that's

20

it.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

22

Member Molina, question?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.

24

Mr. Mendonca, just to cut through the chase, is

25

there anything in here that you guys could do without for

CAMMIE GILLETT, RPR, CSR
(808) 244-DEPO
96

1

4/12/10 BF
maybe one fiscal year? I mean, you know, being that we're

2

in such austere times, are -- are all these things critical?

3

You need it now? Like the refrigerator, the one you have

4

currently, has that been breaking down? Just want to get

5

your thoughts. Is there anything that maybe could wait a

6

year?
MR. MENDONCA: One of the most important pieces of

7

If that

8

equipment there is actually the refrigerator.

9

breaks down, we would be out of luck as far as testing our

10

samples.

11
12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And -- and the current
refrigerator that is -- that's been breaking down?
MR. MENDONCA: It -- it never once broke down since

13
14

1984.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I didn't realize it was that

15
16

Is that good luck, bad luck? I'm not sure.

old.

I guess that sounds like an essential request.

17

MR. MENDONCA: That's an essential request.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

19

MR. MENDONCA: You know, we could --

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. What about the --

21
22

that service -- the one-ton service body boom?
MR. MENDONCA: Yeah. We have about 130,000 miles

23

on that truck right now. So if we were to -- if you were to

24

approve us having the truck, and by the time we replace it,

25

it would be probably about 140,000 miles. Now, if we say
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no, then we're looking at approaching 200,000 miles by next

2

year. So -- and we could run it for another year, it just

3

would require more maintenance and more failures.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank
you.

6

Thank you, Chair.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

12

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I just wanted

13

you to elaborate a little bit more on your thermal scanner

14

and help me understand what that does? You talked about

15

measuring heat concentrations.

16

MR. MENDONCA: Yeah, it's a camera that I think

17

everyone, you know, is familiar with. It converts heat to a

18

color. Now, the color red being hot. The color blue is

19

cold. So the gradient between hot and cold will be various

20

different colors. So what we can is when we do our

21

preventive maintenance, we could, you know, take a snapshot

22

of the panel and quickly identify any kind of hot spots. Or

23

if we didn't have any, we could actually take that image and

24

move it into our maintenance program and use it as a --

25

historical reference.

So that's what that's for.
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An example would be if we had -- some of our pumps

2

would -- you know, the amperage is in the excess of 200

3

amps. So any loose connection would -- would cause a -- a

4

build-up of heat at any lug where the cable connects. So if

5

we were to burn up a -- let's say, if a connection was loose

6

and we were to burn up a circuit breaker, a circuit breaker

7

could cost us $30,000. And quickly, that would repay us.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this is a mobile

8
9

hand-held device?
MR. MENDONCA: It's a mobile hand-held. The prices

10
11

have been going down throughout the years. I mean, they

12

were in excess of $100,000. We got a quote -- that was

13

probably a year ago -- and it's down to $25,000. And -- and

14

I'm pretty sure it's probably less than that now.

15

equipment that we can -- we can utilize and strengthen our

16

troubleshooting skills.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for

17
18
19

So it's

that.
Thank you.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

22

You know, I wanted to ask on the automatic flushing

23

device, is that put mostly in your infrastructure or in the

24

transmission lines at the end of some lines?

25

MR. MENDONCA: That would be in the distribution
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lines.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Distribution lines?

3

MR. MENDONCA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

5

MR. MENDONCA: Yeah.

(Inaudible) transmission lines.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it automatically

6
7

flushes that system periodically so that somebody doesn't

8

have to go there and open the valve and flush the line?
MR. MENDONCA: That's correct.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And in your

10
11

experience, how well are those working?

12
13

MR. MENDONCA: We have one right now up in
Ulupalakua.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

15

MR. MENDONCA: And we've been testing for at least

16

two years.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

18

MR. MENDONCA: And they seem to work fine.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I have a

20

constituent that's complaining about -- and I wanted to be

21

sure this was the device that's being used -- that he's at

22

the end of the waterline and apparently this was installed

23

where there was nothing before that, and he still finds the

24

water really smelly, and he doesn't even like to drink it.

25

So I'm wondering how well these things work?
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What is the difference between putting this and

2

extending the line in a loop to go into another system so

3

that's there's constant flow so that you don't get the

4

build-up of, you know, the stuff that makes water smell bad,

5

bacteria and so forth?
MR. MENDONCA: I mean, that would be great if we

6
7

could do that, you know. But it would take a lot of

8

infrastruct -- infrastructure changes to do that. But that

9

would be an ideal situation if we could do that.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

11

MR. MENDONCA: And we wouldn't have to use these

12

devices.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So other than that, you

13
14

got to use this automatic flushing device?
MR. MENDONCA: Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And how often does

16
17

somebody go and check on the device?

18
19

MR. MENDONCA: Only -- we check at least once a
week.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.

20
21

MR. MENDONCA: Yeah.

22
23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you,
Department.

24

Mahalo, Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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Member Nishiki?

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

4

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mendonca,

8

for being here this morning.
Moving right along, the next program is the Fiscal

9
10

Customer Service area on the Program sheet, 21-7; Details

11

19-9.

12

Holly, opening comments, or Mr. Eng?

13

MS. PERDIDO: Okay. Our Fiscal Division has three

14

separate sections; purchasing, customer service, and general

15

accounting.

16

the procurement of goods and services specific to the

17

Department. Some of the procurements may require technical

18

knowledge and complex products customization that we would

19

need to prepare for. The purchasing section also manages

20

our warehouse, which has two employees at the warehouse, and

21

over 1,000 inventory items that is used for our field

22

operations.

23

Our purchasing section is responsible for all

Customer service is responsible for a wide variety

24

of services, including meter reading, pre -- preauditing,

25

billing, collections, new customer accounts, jobbing,
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cashiering, and related customer service functions for our

2

approximately 36,000 customers.

3

provides all the accounting backup for the Department. They

4

process our -- we prepare the payroll for processing. We do

5

the accounts payable processing, fixed assets, and all the

6

revenue recognition and reconciliation, as well as CIP

7

recognition -- or rec -- reconciliation and capitalization.

8

We also, with the accounting, oversee the budget and also do

9

the annual audit.

10

Our accounting unit

Currently, we are fully staffed. We have no

11

vacancies, which we're happy to have. And I guess I'm ready

12

for questions.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

14

Mem -- Member Molina, questions?

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes, just one quick question

16
17

for Ms. Perdido or the Director.
You have a large number of corrections, yeah,

18

employees? Now, this has just been -- these adjustments,

19

now you're reducing them for Fiscal Year 2011. And these

20

adjustments have been made just for one fiscal year, it

21

doesn't mean these employees were being paid the higher rate

22

for more than one fiscal year? Can I get clarification on

23

that? Because we have one two, three, four, eight, ten,

24

eleven -- eleven corrections in adjustments.

25

MS PERDIDO: Um.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's just -- this is just

2

from one fiscal year? It's not -- it hasn't been occurring

3

for more than one, right, that they are getting a higher

4

pay?

5

MS. PERDIDO: Correct -- pardon?

6

Oh, because of no step increases. That was one of

7

the reasons.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That was one of the reasons?
MS. PERDIDO: Yeah.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

11

MS. PERDIDO: Because for Fiscal Year '10, they had

12

step increases plan. And Fiscal Year '11, there will be

13

none. So we had to reduce that.

14
15
16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, that's the reduction.
Okay.
MS. PERDIDO: And then also, one position, our

17

Assistant Fiscal Officer position will be coming in a lot

18

lower also. Because we finally hired someone, and the

19

person who retired last August was paid a lot higher.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay. Thank you for
that clarification.

22

Thank you, Chair.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the Chair would

24

like to have Ms. Revel [sic] kind of expound on this because

25

we've been seeing a lot of fluctuations on the salary side.
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1 And one of the things that we found was that mistakes from
2

previous years.

So, Ms. Revel [sic].

3

MS. REVELS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just wanted

4

to point out that the budget number for Fiscal Year '10 is

5

what was budgeted, not necessarily what they were paid. And

6

last year and the previous year, some step movements were

7

incorrectly budgeted for, but they were paid correctly. So

8

this year, they're trying to correct some of the mistakes in

9

the budgeting for steps or movement from, say, one --

10

Service Rep II to Service Rep II. You know, correcting some

11

of those things in the budget this year. But the -- all of

12

the employees have been paid correctly, it's just the budget

13

numbers haven't been reflected correctly for some positions.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

Member Baisa?

16

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a quick comment, not a

17

question. But I particularly like your performance measure

18

that says that you're going to meet your performance time

19

for customer service requests within one day at 95 percent.

20

That's a very good goal. It's really important that we take

21

care of our customers. Thank you.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

23

Member Johnson?

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

3

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I

4

wanted to ask this program. Under your premium pay -- you

5

know, it's like $75,000 for the year. And it seemed like

6

you're keeping it the same as Fiscal Year 2010. I wanted to

7

ask you, in looking at your employees and the different

8

positions that they hold within this program, this seems to

9

be more like an nine-to-five kind of work. When does the

10

premium pay come in and what is it for?

11

MS. PERDIDO: Okay. Usually, our premium pay comes

12

in when we have to work overtime or extra time. Also, we

13

have the two warehouse people who are on standby. And

14

that's where the standby pay comes into effect, as well as

15

we would have to pay them extra time if they had to come in

16

to report.

17

I have looked closely at our premium pays, and I'm

18

hoping to reduce it even more. We do have certain times of

19

the year that we need to have some overtime; to get ready

20

for closing year-end, we have inventories, we have many

21

different things that do require us some extra time. But we

22

are looking very closely at that and trying to reduce it.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I'm surprised

24

Member Molina didn't ask it, but -- and he may have, and I

25

didn't hear him. But you too are also cutting out the
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student intern program?
MS. PERDIDO: Yes, with reluctance. We do use our

3

student interns. And so it was -- we even have one that

4

usually comes and works in our warehouse who does very --

5

you know, a lot of work for us. And it's -- we do use them

6

a lot. And a lot of times student interns do come back to

7

the Department eventually.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.

9

MS. PERDIDO: So yeah, we were asked not to fund it

10
11
12
13

for next year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Some of your interns in
the past have been accounting student majors?
MS. PERDIDO: Yes, we've had a variety of students.

14

Yes, some of them are accounting. I'm not sure what

15

exactly -- the boy who worked in the warehouse, but he

16

was -- I know where he went to school. I don't remember

17

what his major was. But we look at all the students who do

18

apply and try to get the one that would fit the most

19

appropriately.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And the rest of

21

your budget is pretty flat. In fact, minused. So thank you

22

for the information.

23

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

25

Mr. Mateo?
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Holly, the standby pay, was that

2

something that was just added to your division's ability to

3

charge against?

4

MS. PERDIDO: The standby pay -- actually, we've

5

been paying standby for -- at the warehouse for quite a

6

while as far as -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: But your budget numbers don't

7
8

show you've been charging it for quite a while. Because

9

it -- you've got a zero in '08. There's nothing prior. But

10

this fiscal year, there's -- there's $15,000 attached to

11

'09.

12

MS. PERDIDO: I think the actual were all included

13

in the premium pay is what happened in priors years. But

14

we've always had standby, as long as I've been at the

15

Department, that we need to have -- well, actually not the

16

whole time. Because at one time, field ops had the

17

warehouse. But now with fiscal having the warehouse, we've

18

always had to pay someone to go back and respond to the

19

warehouse.

20

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And in one of your

21

responses, you indicated there were two people in the

22

warehouse.

23

MS. PERDIDO: Correct.

24

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: That the standby pay is paid to.

25

Is it more than two people?
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MS. PERDIDO: No, it's alternated between them.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So two people makes over --

almost $14,000 just for standby pay?
MS. PERDIDO: Well, one or the other is on standby.

5

So that's between the two of them, you know, for the 24-hour

6

period. Or, you know, for when they're at work, of course.

7

But before work and after work. So we have the two that

8

it's alternated between.

9

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Okay. Well, you know,

10

perhaps -- perhaps our own staff can kind of advise me at a

11

later time how standby pay work because $14,000 for two

12

individuals, that -- that does seem a little high to me.

13

And I don't know what the union requirement is based on

14

standby pay. So maybe at a later time, so I can understand,

15

you know, why -- you know, I think it's a -- I think it's a

16

good arrangement we all should be benefiting from.

17

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

18

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I concur.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, the way I get it was that

20

you're on standby, you get paid $2.00 an hour. As soon as

21

you're called to go to the warehouse, then overtime hours

22

are added to that, the real overtime hours. That was

23

explained earlier.

24
25

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, I heard it explained. But
the reality with an explanation, the reality of two people
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with a dollar value of almost $14,000, I kind of balk at
that.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

4

Mr. Victorino?

5

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

7

We'll go to the B Account. Mr. Victorino?

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, another flat
account. And, you know, I think -- yeah.

10

No, no questions, Chair.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?

12

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, no questions.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?

14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Flat. No questions.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

16

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just one quick question on

21

water meter inventory. We're going down from -- if I'm

22

looking across correctly, from 125,000 to 100,000.

23

going to be an issue for us? You know, sometimes we're

24

trying to save money. We don't want to get in a situation

25

where we don't have what we need.

Is that
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?

2

MS. PERDIDO: One of the reasons we decrease water

3

meter inventory is we needed some more money in our storage

4

inventory. We have a good supply of water meter inventory

5

currently, and we anticipate it should last us through the

6

next year. We did have a small amount of installations last

7

year. So we -- our inventory is sufficient to last us, you

8

know, for the other year. And we did need more in the

9

stores.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Makes perfect

10
11

sense. I guess we aren't doing a lot of water meters.

12

Thank you.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

14

Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Mr. Chair, if I could

15
16

just use this turn for -- to just follow up on a quick A

17

Account question to Ms. Perdido. And following up on Member

18

Mateo's inquiry on premium pay and -- and Mr. Medeiros'

19

questions on the student intern. With regards to overtime,

20

the student interns, do they help to offset costs to the

21

Department for overtime? And typically, these -- the

22

students come during the summertime. And is that when you

23

experience a lot of -- you may have to do a lot a lot of

24

overtime.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
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MS. PERDIDO: They don't really offset the amount

2

of overtime. They just help us get some other things done

3

that need to be done, you know, that we kind of set aside or

4

don't have time to get to. A lot of times, the overtime is

5

needed at crucial times; you know, year-end, when we have to

6

get stuff done for audit or for budget or certain things

7

that have to get done in a timely matter.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So that's the

9 majority of where your overtime occurs at the end of the
10

year, not during the summer months?

11

MS. PERDIDO: Correct.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

13

Thank you, Chair.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Let's see.

15

There's one equipment replacement for -- for computers.

16

Department.

17

MS. PERDIDO: Yeah, this is -- we have a, you know,

18

quite a number of computers in our division, and we use them

19

quite a bit. So we needed to have some kind of backup for

20

some of the older ones that break down.

21
22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any
questions to equipment?

23

Seeing none. Thank you, Holly, for those inputs.

24

Members, the Chair is going to call for our lunch

25

recess, and we shall return at 1:30. This meeting is in
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recess.

2

RECESS:

11:45 a.m.

3

RECONVENE:

1:33 p.m.

4

...(gavel)...

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

...(gavel)... The Budget and

5

Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened. Members, I

6

need to apologize for my several-minute lateness. I had

7

conversations with our support staff downstairs. And thank

8

you for being prompt.

9

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yeah.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Take a credit, yeah.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: At the request of the

13

Department, the next area for review is the water resources

14

and planning area.

15

MR. ENG: Okay.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Eng.

17

MR. ENG: Thank you, Mr. Chair --

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. It's on page 21-11

19

on your Program and 19-18 --

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- on your Detail.

22

Mr. Eng?

23

MR. ENG: Thank you. At this time, I'd like to

24

call up Ellen Kraft -- Kraftsow. And she will give a brief

25

overview for her division, and then she will be available
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for any of your questions.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So our

3

division is the Water Resources and Planning Division. And

4

we have ten full-time funded positions, all of which are

5

full. We have another -- an eleventh position that's not

6

funded, not proposed to be funded.

7

We handle planning and discretionary review for

8

projects that are done, EA -- EAs and permits and things

9

that are coming through. We handle the Water Use and

10

Development Plans, the Capital Plans, and other planning

11

functions for the Department, like forecasting and analysis

12

of proposed build-out impacts. We handle some of the

13

planning information system, the databases on source use and

14 pumpage and demand and supply and availability and
15

facilities inventories for the capital project and for the

16

hydraulic model.

17

We handle water quality support. We have policy

18

development for things like well head protection. I think

19

those drafts are online already. A well citing program

20

that's coming.

21

funding to $70,000 in Fiscal Year '01, and $200,000 in a

22

grant that was signed in '09.

23

that work also includes putting together a potential

24

contaminant source inventory for the island and best

25

management practices for identified potential contaminating

Those programs have -- had $270,000 in grant

Fiscal Year '09. That --
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activities, Website section and outreach and education.
And then we have other resource protection that

3

includes our watershed protection, our aquifer monitoring,

4

our native plant gardens, our conservation efforts.

5

those are the main areas that we have.

6

So

And then within the division, we also have three

7

sections. Each one has two districts and a functional

8

planning area. So we have our Central Maui and Hana

9

District that's also responsible for well head protection,

10

well citing. And they also do the majority of our review of

11

ordinances and County policies. And they maintain a

12

regulatory compliance calendar.

13

We have our West Maui and Lanai and Conservation

14

District, which handles the giveaways of fixtures, the

15

outreach events, the conservation programs, the leak

16

detection, the pilot retrofit program -- projects.

17

And then we have our Upcountry and Molokai

18

Districts, which also handle the hydraulic model, which is

19

entering and updating system facilities into a model that

20

can predict pressures and flows under different conditions.

21

Like if a new development came in or if a break happened,

22

how would you reroute the water to a certain area? That's

23

the function of that section.

24

So with that.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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Members, we'll go on the A Account first.

2

Mr. Victorino, if you have any questions.

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.

4

And, Ms. Kraftsow, you mentioned that you had no

5

vacancies at this time or you had all your positions filled.

6

But I do notice there's one position --

7

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- WW-0241?

9

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, we have no funded vacancies.

10

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay.

11

MS. KRAFTSOW: In Fiscal Year '11, that -- that

12
13

has -- the funds were frozen for that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. No, no that's why

14

you said no vacancy. And then I saw that not filled. So

15

that was my question, but you answered that question.

16

The other question I had for you is I was reading

17

over your -- you know, you're on 21-13 and I was very

18

impressed, and I think sometimes this is not seen by the

19

people of Maui County. But you -- you say you got -- your

20

Department has given away 5,955 showerheads -- which is, you

21

know, 6,000 -- 4,186 bathroom faucets, and 3,568 kitchen

22

facet, and another 3,496 self-close -- self-closing hose

23

nozzles in the past fiscal year?

24

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes. Actually, if you were to look

25

at all the giveaways we've done, we've given away closer to
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33,000 of each of the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. With the 21,686
radio and streaming ads?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And all these other
things that you guys do?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And my -- my question to
you is have you seen from your side -- and I think the

10

Director mentioned. But from your side, some results in all

11

this effort in conservation? And that's what I would call

12

it. Right? Efforts in conservation.

13

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, I think that -- so the most

14

impressive results have been when we've done the toilet

15

retrofits. With the fixtures, we have to -- because our

16

budget has been low historically and we haven't had staff, a

17

lot of our conservation outreach and fixture giveaway has

18

been almost in the way of PR. I mean, we want to conserve

19

water with it. But, you know, we've given away, as I said,

20

like 33,000 showerheads.

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.

22

MS. KRAFTSOW: We probably estimate that just from

23

the fixtures that we've given away, excluding toilets and

24

excluding direct install retrofits -- well, you have to

25

remember the other conservation measures also are the
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tiered-rate structure and the ordinance that requires
low-flow fixtures.

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

4

MS. KRAFTSOW: So we estimate roughly half a

5

million in savings from the combined efforts at this point.

6

And we think we could do a lot better.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Half a million gallons,

7
8

right, you're referring to?
MS. KRAFTSOW: A day.

9

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, a day. And that

10
11

adds up to a lot of water?

12
13

MS. KRAFTSOW: But the -- yeah, the fixtures
themselves probably are only about 200,000 of that.

14

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, that still -- I

15

mean, it's a -- it's a step in the right direction,

16

Mr. Chair.

17
18

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the other thing I

19

wanted to ask you, on these water conservation specialists,

20

you have two. You have a Specialist III and a Specialist I?

21
22

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can you -- can you tell

23

myself and the public what these two particular positions do

24

as conservation specialists?

25

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes. We hired our first
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conversation specialist in July '07, and our second one in

2

November of 2009. In addition to learning how to use the

3

equipment that they had to use -- the leak detection

4

equipment and the survey equipment and the GPS -- so far,

5

they have surveyed over 50 miles of pipe, identified -- I

6

have the count of leaks somewhere, but not off the top of my

7

head. I'm sorry. I can dig for it if you want.

8
9

So it would take them about five to seven years,
depending on how many areas need repeat survey to do -- to

10

maintain an inventory of our entire system, get it on a

11

regular survey schedule. And that's a big portion of what

12

they do.

13

In addition, they do an annual water audit that we

14

used to have to do. Now it's done systematically. There's

15

staff actually assigned to do it. In addition, they do

16

many, many outreach events. And they've done things like a

17

voluntary water audit for the Hotel Wailea. They've given

18

away 461 toilets so far, direct -- direct install programs.

19

And another 80 are pending. Poster contest that had 452

20

entries. So a combination of continuing with the

21

advertisements and the outreach that we're doing and beefing

22

it up with more in-the-field leak detection survey, mapping

23

of their work, mapping of the mile survey, mapping of the

24

leaks found.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So these are the only two
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people assigned to that? I mean, there's nobody else that
does leak detection, just these two individuals?

3

MS. KRAFTSOW: There are people within the baseyard

4

that are able to do leak detection. Often now, though, when

5

a leak is suspected or if we're monitoring the Scada,

6

they'll go out. They'll see something that looks like a

7

leak, and they'll go out.

8

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I was

9

curious, then. Because you just gave five to seven years.

10

I'm saying, whoa, that's a long time to wait to get -- get

11

it all done.

12

MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, 750 miles --

13

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no. I understand.

14

So I was hoping we had more than two people doing all that

15

work. But Thank you, Ellen. And I appreciate that. And

16

thank you for the information and the clarification.

17

Thank you, Chair.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

19

Mr. Mateo?

20

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?

24

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

25

Yeah, Department, I want to ask -- because on page
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21-12 on the budget proposal, accompliment --

2

accomplishments for Calendar Year 2009.

3

bullet, permit and environmental review, all of the Council

4

Members here probably have heard from the constiuents about

5

how long it takes for permits to get reviewed and completed.

In the second

6 What has your program done -- done to expedite the review of
7
8

applications for permits or EAs, and so forth?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. We do --

9 we do go over in our -- in our staff meetings when we have
10

them where everybody is. And periodically, I'll ask people

11

if they have any late permits. But I think that the permits

12

that take a long time to review are typically the ones that

13

involve putting pipes in the ground. We only review

14

discretionary permits, so we're not exchanging big sets of

15

maps with consultants on a regular basis. So I think ours

16

are probably a little faster because they're not as complex.

17
18
19
20
21
22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So does your program
review building -MS. KRAFTSOW: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- permits? No. It's
mainly in-house?
MS. KRAFTSOW: We only do the discretionary. Those

23

are the ones that the deciding body has discretion on. So

24

that would Change in Zoning, Special Use Permits, EAs, EISs.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: Special Management Area Permits,

2

Project District Approvals, District Boundary Amendments.

3

Those -- those -- basically, the Planning Department type.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So -- so what have you

5

found in the area that you do review the applications for

6

the permits on, what -- what has the Department done to

7

improve the time that it takes to review it?

8

MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, now that we have an actual

9

clerical person on staff, which is fairly recent, we log

10

when it comes in, we log when it goes out, and we check

11

periodically on the status of who, if anyone, is behind.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And does your
program have engineers as part of your review?

14

MS. KRAFTSOW: Not within my -- I actually do have

15

one qualified engineer in my division. But the -- they're

16

not performing permit review as of -- as an engineering

17

function. They're working on the hydraulic model.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Then finally, what

18
19

role does your division play in the watershed protection

20

area?

21
22
23

MS. KRAFTSOW: That's -- the watershed protection
contracts are all administered within my division.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So you're -- you're

24

just providing the contracts. Do you oversee what is done

25

after the contracts are provided?
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MS. KRAFTSOW: We have a system whereby -- like I

2

could give you -- I actually have it here -- the

3

deliverables for every Fiscal Year 2010 contract. And then

4

the way we have it set up, the first bill is allowed to come

5

without a report. But after then, every -- every invoice

6

has to come with a report -- reporting on the deliverables

7

of the contract. And we only pay when the report is

8

received and deemed acceptable.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. And

10

should we want or need that information, at least we know

11

where it is. It's with you. Okay. Thank you for that

12

information.

13

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

Member Johnson?

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll go to the B

22

Account, 19-19.

Mr. Molina?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, just for

24

clarification, are we just looking at 19-19, and not the

25

grants at this point?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grants, we completed -- when did

we complete them?

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Last week.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. So just on this.

6

No, no questions in here.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

8

Member Baisa?

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a couple of notable

10

things. One is the reduction in professional services from

11

315,500 to 266,400, and that's Item 6132.

12

MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, let's take them one -one by one.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. Those decreases are based

16

on -- first of all, there was a Molokai project. The

17

funding schedule calls for less money this -- in Fiscal Year

18

'11 than it did previously. And also we removed -- because

19

of the budget constrictions, we removed some of our

20

allowances. We basically eliminated all of our allowances

21

with the except of the Water Use and Development Plan and

22

related services that we know we need to issue.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Allowances, can you tell me
what those are?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes. We usually have some small
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allowances for resource protection in case something comes

2

up. And also small allowances for information systems, such

3

as studies we might need for the demand model, for scanning

4

bills, old bills in, for the hydraulic model work, you know.

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, we hope those

6

stays small this year. And, of course, the obvious, the

7

last one, 6278, your conversation program, the big change

8

from 260,000 to 180,000?

9

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes. Actually, when I initially

10

prepared the budget, our instructions were to stay flat

11

initially. And so -- but I wanted to beef up conservation,

12

so I cut everything so that I could put in some extra money

13

for conservation. But then when we had to cut, we lost that

14

too. So right now we're actually -- this budget is so tight

15

that I am actually concerned about whether we will able to

16

function smoothly.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, that's kind of

18

scary for us to hear. Because, you know, we're working very

19

hard at trying to balance a budget, but then we're going to

20

live with it. So we also have to be grounded in a little

21

bit of reality. Because I hate to have six months from now,

22

everybody come back and say, my goodness, we totally

23

under-did this or we don't have that. And then what do we

24

do? Because we're not in budget. So thank you very much.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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Member Johnson?

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

8

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, if the Department can

9
10

provide comments on the objectives for Fiscal Year 2011 in
terms of the second bullet?

11
12

MS. KRAFTSOW: Sorry. Let me turn back to that
page.

13

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: 21-12. I'm sorry.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is that the up -- update on the

15

long range capital?

16

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yes.

17

MS. KRAFTSOW: 21-14 -- 12, okay. The second

18
19

bullet?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Your second bullet is

20

update long range capital program to reflect updated Water

21

Use and Development Plan.

22

MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. Yes. Because we -- we do

23

maintain a database that is our Capital Program Plan. And

24

although it's pretty much never passed out because the

25

notebook would be about four-inches thick, it is maintained
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an utilized when we do -- when we do budgeting. And that

2

database includes projects for source development and -- as

3

well as system replacement projects. And so based on the

4

recommendations that result from the Water Use and

5

Development Plan studies, that database would be updated and

6

altered and then factored, in turn, into our rate-making

7

studies that go on.

8

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So the Water Use and Development

9

Plans to date that's -- that you're referencing is which are

10
11

completed Water Use and Development Plans?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I'm talking about the Water Use and

12

Development Plans that Carl's working on now. In other

13

words, the capital database would already be updated to

14

reflect any source plans that we had previously. But as you

15

know, there's still many questions outstanding. And as soon

16

as we get the answers to those questions, we would work

17

those into the Capital Plan as well.

18

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And your Capital Plan

19

goes -- you know, since this is long range, what is long

20

range in terms of years? What are you looking at?

21

MS. KRAFTSOW: I believe I have projects scheduled

22

as far out as 2025. But then the majority of the projects

23

in the database are unscheduled, meaning they will either

24

happen beyond that point, or we're not yet sure which year

25

is right to put them in.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And have you had the opportunity

2

to follow along with the changes in the -- and the potential

3

development of the Water Use and Development Plans, are --

4

are -- you know, is there any concern about the excessive

5

costs that will be tacked on to moving these plans forward?

6

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes, that is exactly what this point

7

is getting at is that we know that all of the proposed plans

8

are expensive. And, for instance, one of the most

9

cost-effective measures in the plans is capital level

10

investment in conservation, which obviously we could not

11

afford to do this year, which puts us behind the eight ball.

12

And so all of that has to be rolled in and factored into our

13

capital planning and then working with fiscal on -- on our

14

financial planning as well.

15

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

17

Mr. Victorino?

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I have a fast question. In the

20

area of your responsibility, Member Mateo brings up pretty

21

good inform -- concerns, yeah, regarding the Water Use

22

Development Plan for all of the districts. My question,

23

though, is more geared towards the Maui Island Plan. In

24

your area of responsibilities, do you see capital costs

25

going forward that's identified in the Appendix C of the
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Maui Island Plan?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Maui

3

Island Plan -- the Appendix C is the capital portion of the

4

Maui Island Plan. And we -- we did make a first review of

5

that. As noted, some of the systems plans are still in flux

6

as they're being evaluated against changing decisions by the

7

Commission, and so on. But we are working closely with the

8

Planning Department.

9

At this time, I think that the only expenses would

10

be -- we've already done an -- analysis and revised analysis

11

with our consultant for some districts because of situations

12

that have come up. And if the Capital Plan were to suggest

13

major changes, then we would have some additional cost-base

14

consulting fees. But I don't anticipate that being a

15

problem since we're working together. I think that if we

16

came up from something different than was in there, they

17

would probably support that anyway based on the analysis.

18

So we're working with them.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And maybe for the

20

Director in regards to this 20-year plan, you know, certain

21

areas is going to be huge investment. In regards to the

22

Department, how do -- how will we meet those objectives?

23

MR. ENG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I -- I think

24

really the objectives will be met, given all the

25

extraordinary new resources we need to develop by being very
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creative in how we can obtain a funding. You know, it's

2

probably going to be a combination of some aggressive

3

rate-making, taking advantage of any other type of --

4

particularly, Federal assistance.

5

and to address all of our needs, the Maui Island Plan, our

But I think going forward

6 Water Use and Development Plan is how we will be able to
7

seek and obtain the funding.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

9

Okay. Members, that's all for the B.

10
11
12

And then for C Account, Ms. Kraftsow, in regards no
your equipment requirements?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes, we have about five computers

13

that are on their last legs. So we're going to try to see

14

if we can take care of some of them this year. But the --

15

the balance of that, the equipment is mostly for that. And

16

then in addition, furniture and fixtures, we have -- as we

17

were preparing this budget, we had people who either needed

18

additional filing or bookcases or, in one case, was falling

19

apart and maybe looks like a possible safety issue,

20

including some of our storage that's upstairs in the back.

21

So it's just a little bit of money just in case we need to

22

replace some furniture that's falling apart or give people

23

some extra storage.

24
25

As I mentioned, we have had some substantial staff
increases in the last few years, so nobody everybody is 100
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percent equipped yet, too.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. I think

3

that's all we have for our water resources and planning.

4

Thank you, Ms. Kraftsoft -- Kraftsow for being here this

5

afternoon.

6

Members, we'll go to the next area, which is the

7

Engineering Program. And it's on page 21-9 on Program,

8

19-14 on Details. We have Mr. Chang coming down.
Mr. Chang, comments?

9

MR. CHANG: Good afternoon. The Engineering

10
11

Division, the main functions are subdivision applications,

12

building permit applications, water service applications.

13

The division reviews these applications. And if -- if

14

everything is in order, it approves these applications.

15

Another function is our capital improvement program, which

16

our staff of engineers review and obtain consulting services

17

for design; also, to handle the construction phases of these

18

capital improvement projects.

19

We always, on a yearly basis, gather the

20

information as far as what areas needing -- are in need of

21

repair, replacements. And that's -- with -- with this

22

process, we determine which projects are most, as far as

23

priority-wise, should be moving forward, subject to funds.

24

So these are the main two functions of the Engineering

25

Division.
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2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
Members, we -- we had some new sheets that was

3

provided by the Budget Director, if you got it, that was

4

handed out to us this morning. And it's on 19-14.

5

Identified page number 19-14, 19-15.

6

First of all, I'd like to ask you a fast question.

7

Within the last three years now, we've probably seen a

8

reduction in billing permits. And regards to the reviewing

9

process of your Department of permits and plans, knowing

10

that we have reductions, what is the turnaround time for

11

those plans?

12

MR. CHANG: I believe the turnaround for these

13

plans and reviewing the applications for either subdivisions

14

or building permits, staff was able to actually catch up

15

with most of the building permits. I think that the volume

16

of applications that came in for the past two years went as

17

low as 50 percent of what was normal in the high peak, I

18

guess we'd call it. So our staff was able to keep up and

19

actually catch up with the work. And, you know, depending

20

on what was submitted to the form of the submittals, some

21

submittals were very complete, we could turn around, you

22

know, in a month or so. Because if it didn't require too

23

much improvements in infrastructure, it could be even

24

quicker.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So in regards to the reductions
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of review -- because, you know, big projects are not coming

2

through. The number of personnel that you have and the

3

workload that we got going forward, do you see an imbalance

4

of workload versus number of personnel you've got?

5

MR. CHANG: It kind of was like a moving

6

occurrence. Because when we were -- in the CIP sections, we

7

were very, very short in engineers. While in our

8

development section, we were pretty adequately staffed.

9

Even though adequately means we -- you know, during the peak

10

times, we still couldn't keep up, but there was enough

11

production that it was relatively proper.

12

But what happened was in recent years, we had the

13 American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, which we had to
14

scramble in our CIP sections. So we had to shift some of

15

the work to our private development section, our building

16

permit section and the subdivision, because we pretty much

17

had to help out each other. Because the CIP section was

18

down to one engineer at one time. But luckily, we're back

19

up to three right now. But prior to that, we had to

20

maneuver and shift work around.

21

And it seemed to work, we got the three ARRA

22

projects out. And two is almost completed. And one is, you

23

know, less than halfway through, but it's moving along. And

24

now that we have two new engineers in the CIP section, we'll

25

be able to transfer some of that work back to the CIP. And
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we're also shifting some staff around in the building

2

permits sections. So I think these will be a little more

3

efficient.

4

And the staff will be concentrating on less -- I

5

should say, not as much different activities. They'll be

6

concentrating on -- they'll be spending more time

7

concentrating on less work crit -- less work types, I should

8

say. That way, they can do quicker work because they're not

9

jumping around from putting one hat on first in the morning,

10

jump -- putting another hat on in the afternoon. So it will

11

be steady work throughout the day. And which way, I believe

12

it will be making the division a lot more efficient.

13
14
15
16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Do you have
any vacant positions right now?
MR. CHANG: We still have four positions vacant;
two engineers and two survey crew.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's the status?

18

MR. CHANG: The Engineer VI, which is the head of

19

the CIP section. That one, we will freeze during the Fiscal

20

Year 2011. And that's with -- the intent is, being that's

21

such a critical position, we want to test out some of our

22

staff to see whether they can handle the -- the work.

23

Because it's -- it's a lot of planning, scheduling staff,

24

making sure we keep -- just keep on track with our project.

25

You have to have someone there that really wants to push the
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projects out and not be lackadaisical. So I believe in the

2

one-year period, I can really test the staff. And if

3

someone proves to have the medal, we'll try to get that

4

position filled with that person.
But in the meantime, three CIP section or three

5
6

should be adequate. And when we get to see six filled,

7

there will be four people in the CIP section, which we --

8

we'll be in really top shape. So the other engineer that we

9

are trying to fill is the C4 position. That one, we --

10

we'll held off -- hold off until possible -- earliest is

11

July 1st of this year. And that would be under this Central

12

Maui/South Maui Development Section.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'm going to ask you this

14

question, I just want your rec -- your -- your comments. If

15

you were to reduce one employee, can you give me a comment

16

in regards to how it would affect your department?

17
18

MR. CHANG: Assuming it's an engineer we need to
reduce?

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Any -- any position?

20

MR. CHANG: Okay. I -- I -- I'll take the

21

situation where if we had to reduce one engineer. If the

22

economy were to start booming, I think we -- we'll be with

23

the four engineers that we have, we just recently hired in

24

the past four months, we should be okay. But we can

25

survive.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for being

honest. Thank you, I appreciate that.

3

Member Molina?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes, Chair. I guess maybe

5

Mr. Chang answered my question. It was related to the

6

engineer, Civil Engineer VI position, which is, I guess, has

7

been eliminated. If I could get clarification on that?
MR. CHANG: Well, we didn't really eliminate it.

8
9

We --

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just not funding it?

11

MR. CHANG: Not funding it for one fiscal year.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And I know you stated

13

that you can still -- based on the amount of CIPs that you

14

have that you can get by with the amount of engineers that

15

you have?

16

MR. CHANG: Yes. With the two new engineers, being

17

that they're from the outside, private, they come in,

18

they're really fired up and ready to go.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I guess what a

20

difference a couple of years make. We were dying for

21

engineers to keep up with the CIP. And now, I guess, we

22

can, you know, get by. So I'm just hoping that these -- you

23

know, the lack of engineers now, it's not going to serve as

24

a hindrance in getting these CIP projects done. Thank you.

25

Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

2

Member Baisa?

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.

4

Thank you, Mr. Chang. I'm real happy to hear we're

5

getting better staffed in your Department because that will

6

help us from getting all the calls that we do about, "The

7

Water Department is holding up my permit."

8
9

I'm looking at your performance measures for the
number of building permits approved. And you're projecting

10

600 for next year, and you have 800 for this year. Has

11

that -- how are you doing with that 800? Are you even close

12

to it?

13
14

MR. CHANG: The past -- we're looking at, say,
2009 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

15
16

'09, you have 891. I don't

know how you did it.
MR. CHANG: Yeah. The real figures we got was

17
18

actually in 2009, the fis -- the calendar year, we had close

19

to 1,000 permits that we actually received, building

20

permits.

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.

22

MR. CHANG: And it did fall from 11 -- in 2007, we

23

had about 1500.

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Woe, okay.

25

MR. CHANG: And even 2000, in the year 2005. So it
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dropped in half.

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, that's a real

3

contrast. And it certainly, clearly tells us what's going

4

on with our economy. This is a -- a really important

5

number:

6

the 800 with the '10, Fiscal Year '10?

The 2,000, 1500; 1,000 this year. Are you close to

MR. CHANG: I don't have that number, but we're

7
8

about going steady as what we had in the past, 2009 Fiscal

9

Year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you might have the 1,000.

10
11

And then you figure in the upcoming year, 600 is a good

12

number?

13
14

MR. CHANG: I think so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's kind of scary, you

15

know, when we're looking ahead at. Because these permits

16

are a key to our recovery. Thank you very much, and I'm

17

glad you have a better staff.

18

MR. CHANG: Thank you.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

20

Member Johnson?

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chang, when you're

22

reviewing permits -- because earlier, Mr. Eng said that

23

because we're reaching capacity in some areas. When you're

24

looking at these things, what are you actually looking at?

25

Are you looking at individual situations? Are you looking
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at Water Resource Development? You know, when somebody asks

2

for a permit, what -- you know, because I'm not really sure

3

what your engineers or your people are looking at. Because

4

if we're not giving out any more permits, it's like, hello?

5

MR. CHANG: Yeah. What's happening is people --

6

although we may not be able to issue new meters, we --

7

people or properties are still able to develop using their

8

existing water meter. But there are cases where we would

9

not able to approve a new meter. So people would still

10

apply for it, but we would not be able to prove the permit

11

because of the lack of water.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Now --

13

MR. CHANG: So we do reveal -- when we get an

14

application, we reveal, first of all, whether they need a

15

new meter or they have an existing meter that can handle

16

their project.

17

where it needs a larger meter or it needs a brand new meter,

18

then if it's an area that we don't issue meters, the permit

19

would be denied.

20

If it's -- if it's -- if it is the first one

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Now, they pay a fee.

21

Is that correct? And then you make the determination

22

whether it's going to be approved or not approved, and --

23

and they don't get that fee back. Right?

24
25

MR. CHANG: The fee is paid to the Department of
Public Works. And so -- but by the time we comes to the
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Water Department, we not -- we're not sure how much they pay
for the permit. The Water Department does not charge.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And why -- do you

4

have -- I know in other departments where there are services

5

that are performed that are related to something that, I

6

guess, each area of responsibility, there's usually an

7

adjustment within one's budget. So do you get any

8

adjustments on your budget overall where that is the case;

9

like, let's say, Public Works is getting the fee, but then

10

you get a responsibility of having to check and have your

11

engineers review certain things?

12
13
14
15
16

MR. CHANG: I don't believe we get any portion of
the fee.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I'd -- I'd really
like to find out.
Because usually, Mr. Chair, in every department, if

17

there's services that are performed, we always have a

18

separate accounting for each one of those little areas where

19

somebody's doing something. Even between Public Works and

20

Parks, there's some kind of an accounting. So where these

21

guys are stuck with the responsibility for performing a

22

service, how do they beef up their budget if somebody else

23

is getting the fee? Because the fee is supposed to be

24

covering all the expenses, but they don't even know what

25

they're getting.
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So I think it's important -- I realize that there's

2

a meter charge, but I -- I just want to know that these guys

3

are not getting unfairly burdened with having to perform

4

duties, and yet they have insufficient operating budget.

5
6
7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe question for Budget
Direct -- you know, response from Budget Director.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good idea, yes. I'm trying

8

to generate -- at least, accountability for the revenue.

9

Because we may not get the unadjudicated fines from the

10

State for our traffic fines, but at least we should see if

11

there's some way that we can, you know, help account or

12

track whatever fees do come in.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Budget Director?

14

MR. PABLO: I'll try to answer these in general

15

terms. That's -- that's is a very good question. And I

16

will take it up with our Finance Department accounting

17

section. Because they are existing ways, as -- as you

18

mentioned. When the Public Works, for example, fills in for

19

Solid Waste and -- and provides backup trash collectors when

20

there's -- there's -- when there's an illness in the Solid

21

Waste Division, there is a way for tracking that.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh

23

MR. PABLO: And also for the Accounting Department

24

to determine the value of those services. And at the

25

beginning of the year, I get this from the Finance
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Department. And we will -- we will put in what we call an

2

interfund transfer; a fix amount for that year based on a

3

past year's experience. We could look into this for the

4

Water Department also. I'll bring it up with Finance.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate that.

6

Because, you know, I'm trying to look at how we adjust in

7

other departments. And it just seemed that that area, you

8

know, was a shortfall in the Water Department. But the

9

other thing is that I'm sure when Public Works assists with

10

like the road repair, you know, in -- in Mr. Molina's case

11

in his area, you probably get dinged. You know, if Public

12

Works is going out and helping to assist with roadway

13

projects, that would maybe not ordinarily fall within your

14

purview. So, you know, what's good for the goose is good

15

for the gander. So I -- I just bring that up, not to

16

confuse the issue, but just try to keep us all on the same

17

page. Thank you.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good point.

19

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

20

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The only question I

21

have is on your -- on the narrative, page 21-10. The

22

$5 million amount for CIP, that was what you were describing

23

as the -- the ARRA funds?

24

MR. CHANG: Yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then
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there's no other sources of grant revenues coming in at all
that you anticipate?

3

MR. CHANG: No.

4
5
6

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Do you actively
pursue?
MR. CHANG: We are trying to get some grant monies

7

from the Tri -- EPA Tribal Assistance. Also, there's some

8

more money from the Department of Ag through the Water Rural

9

Association Group. So I guess those are the two that we're

10
11
12
13

trying to get more money from.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And what kind of
amounts of money are you talking about?
MR. CHANG: It seems like they have -- we're

14

looking possibly somewhere for Kamole, possibly around --

15

almost a million. And some other various waterline projects

16

from the other sources, maybe $2 million, $3 million if we

17

can. So we're still actively in contact with them. So

18

we'll find out more in the next few months what they can

19

provide us.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

22

Mr. Medeiros?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

24

Department, explain to me the process in the

25

difference in your construction plans, review and approval,
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and the building permits? So the construction plans come
first?

3

MR. CHANG: I can explain it in several ways.

4

There's like subdivisions, and then there's building

5

permits. The building permits is usually we make -- the

6

Department reviews the permit, and then we make the

7

requirements, and then the construction plans will follow.

8

Sometimes they submit it as a whole package, but

9

generally -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I was just asking

10
11

because if you review both, if they don't come together,

12

then you almost have a double review of pretty much the same

13

project.

14

MR. CHANG: Generally, we don't review until we --

15

the Department knows what the infrastructure improvements

16

are. They may submit it, but we're not going to look at it

17

until we contact the engineers and the applicant just to

18

make sure what's required, and then we'll do the review.

19

Otherwise, we'll be wasting time.

20
21
22

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, that's the point I
was getting to. Okay.
Then just -- Mr. Chairman, just a comment. And,

23

you know, Member Molina's been championing this part. I

24

wanted to say because they also had to eliminate your

25

student interns, right, positions, which I'm sure you're
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reluctant to do.
But, Mr. Chair, I'd just like to say that, you

3

know, probably the public wants to know -- especially those

4

parents that sacrifice to send their kids to college,

5

especially the engineering programs. Now that we have less

6

jobs available during the summer because of the plantation

7

pineapple closing down and sugar certainly has slowed down,

8

that now there's less jobs for their children, their

9

students to find summer work.

10

So I -- I too wish we could have continued -- maybe

11

not the whole thing, but at least some engineering intern

12

programs or just student intern programs within all the

13

different departments. Because I think this would have been

14

helpful and encouraging to parents that sacrifices to send

15

their kids to college to have them earn some money during

16

the summer in order to help with the expenses. But those

17

are just my comments. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

19

Mr. Nishiki, questions?

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

22

Member Mateo?

23

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Vic -- Victorino, questions

25

on the B Account?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Pretty flat.

2

No, pretty flat. No, no questions.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

4

Member Mateo?

5

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

9

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Where are we?

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: B Account.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: My fault.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: 19-16.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah thank you. Chairman,

14

I don't have any questions on the B Account. But I'd like

15

to ask the Department one quick question, if I may, on what

16

we just came from.

17

And that would be, Department, you know on your

18

student interns, there's -- there's no funding, right, but

19

the positions are still there? Is there a possibility that,

20

because you're self-sufficient, you may get some grants,

21

that if you run across some monies that could be applied to

22

these positions, would that be a possibility with the

23

Department? Or is the --

24

MR. ENG: Well, you folks will be reviewing our

25

rates and fees next Monday. So you can respond to us at
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that time. Again --

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you --

3

MR. ENG: -- we're not included, as you know.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.

5

MR. ENG: You know, we do really place a value on

6

these interns. If you really come to think of it, it's real

7

cost-effective.

8

and the rates of pay are really nominal --

9
10
11

You know, I approve their employee papers,

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. ENG: -- relative compared to our full-time
employees. And we don't pay any pension costs.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.

13

MR. ENG: So it's very cost-effective for the

14

County to take advantage of them. Again, particularly like

15

Holly, she really relies on interns to catch up. They've

16

got so many things to deal with. I know our lab people like

17

to have the summer interns, too. So yeah, they really do

18

have a lot of value.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

20

MR. ENG: Big bang for the buck.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I

22

you're putting the ball in our court now. But maybe

23

together, maybe we can find a way to do it.

24
25

I -- I know

MR. ENG: Sure. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

2

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

3

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, just a

4

follow-up on Member Medeiros. That doesn't preclude the

5

Department from seeking outside sources of grant monies that

6

may be available to supplement this. Correct?

7

MR. ENG: You're absolutely right.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So while we won't

9
10

fund it necessarily, perhaps in the budget, that doesn't
preclude you because you do still have your position counts.

11

MR. ENG: Right.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the

13

only question I have here is in your Details, if I'm looking

14

at services, under computer services, 6110, the change.

15

MR. CHANG: We had some changeover in our file

16

scanning systems. We had anticipated some -- some monies

17

that were needed for maintenance of that -- or services.

18

But that turned out where we don't need that any more, so we

19

were able to cut off a whole big -- whole chunk of money for

20

that.

21
22

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And the next
item below that, the contractual services?

23
24
25

MR. ENG: Same thing. Our -- hang on just a
second.
Yes, right. Our copy machines, we were
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relatively -- didn't have too many expenses, comparing it to
our last year, so we just cut back a little bit.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So that's
contracts for copying machines, then?
MR. CHANG: Yeah, it's for maintenance and repair.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Maintenance and

6
7

repair. Okay. Moving down the line, you have -- hold on.

8
9
10

Okay. I'm not seeing -- okay. Just below that,
under -- for lab services, 61 -- 61-27. Can you explain
that?

11

MR. CHANG: That particular item -- excuse me -- we

12

pumped it up because we were having a couple new groundwater

13

sources come online, and we felt we probably would need to

14

have some water quality -- more water quality testing done.

15

Those are several thousand dollars each.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Each, okay.

17

MR. CHANG: We're anticipating a little bit more.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That's all

19

the questions I have.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

21

Member Johnson?

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Your funds are -- you know,

23

for your Department, do they come -- is it any combination

24

of General Fund monies, or is it all from restrictive funds?

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Eng?
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MR. ENG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Our funds are

from the Water Fund.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

4

MR. ENG: So those are basically from our water

5

revenues for water consumption fees, standby charges.

6

Things like that.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And --

8

MR. ENG: There's not a dime from the General Fund.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because that's --

10

for me, anyway, I'm looking at -- I don't know. I guess

11

when I think of your budget going down, basically your

12

fees -- because what your budget is supposed to reflect is

13

basically, if you're taking in fees, that should be

14

sufficient for your operations. So you should come out

15

about even. So what I'm looking at, though, is you're going

16

down. So do you anticipate that we're going to cut fees or

17

that we're not going to have sufficient monies to fund this

18

section?

19

Because ordinarily, I would say in most other

20

departments other than yours, yeah, you know, where stuff

21

operates out of the General Fund because the real property

22

tax revenues are trending downward. But in your Department,

23

unless you're planning or are you thinking we're going to go

24

down in funds, our fees --

25

MR. ENG: Yeah, I understand, Ms. Johnson. And
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again, we've had kind of an odd phenomenon over the past

2

years or so. Probably due to our customers conserving water

3

is we've had a reduction in revenue.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

5

MR. ENG: And that's why a couple months ago when

6

the Committee met, you know, we had to address our -- our

7

Department's shortfall.

8

the next fiscal year. And again, this is a phenomenon that

9

is just not unique to our system.

So we froze some positions until

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh?

11

MR. ENG: I believe all the other counties are

12

experiencing something like us. What's it -- seven or eight

13

percent lesser -- lesser revenue coming in. So because of

14

that, that causes your rates to go up too.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

16

MR. ENG: So it's like it's kind of odd. But,

17

yeah, our costs are going down, but our rates are going up;

18

a lot of it due to conservation and less consumption.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and also, grant

20

revenue too is probably drying up. Is that another

21

reflection?

22
23

MR. ENG: Well, we generally don't have too much
grant revenue, you know.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I think last year you
had a --
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MR. ENG: ARRA Grants.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.

3

MR. ENG: And that was really like an SRF loan --

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah.

5

MR. ENG: -- without any interest or principle

6

payment. So that was kind of a unique type of grant. But

7

generally, we don't -- we don't see those. But those are

8

what we're trying to explore more and more.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I -- I just --

10

MR. ENG: -- opportunities.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, I try to get an

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

understanding -MR. ENG: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- of where you're going
and why. Because you're unique in your Department -MR. ENG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- as opposed to some other
departments, I could understand that.
MR. ENG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But I -- I really
appreciate your explanation. Thank you.

22

MR. ENG: Oh, thank you.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

24

Member Baisa?

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Along the same lines that
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Member Johnson is going. Big picture. If revenue goes up

2

for some reason -- because we raise the rates, and we have

3

more money, and your costs go down -- would you be able to

4

use some of those -- revenue that you might have for capital

5

improvement type things? Are you allowed to do that?
MR. ENG: Well, basically, we'd have a larger

6
7

carryover at the end of the year to utilize for next year.

8

And if we have excess cash, yeah, that's a great way to fund

9

some of our capital replacement projects. That will give us

10

a nice head start and hoping that we can kind of minimize

11

rate increases in the future years too. So, yeah, if we

12

have a little bit of a windfall in revenue, it would be a

13

big plus.

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Very good. Because if we
could get ahead, that would be great. Thanks.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

17

Member Molina?

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions other than

19

just a follow-up on Member Kaho'ohalahala and Member

20

Medeiros' inquiry regarding our college interns.

21

no way to pay for these kids' services, if there's a way to

22

arrange with the colleges to, at least give these kids some

23

kind of credit. Sometimes that can be more valuable than

24

the pay itself you for prac -- practical experience or

25

on-the-job training, whatever.

If there's

If that could be one avenue
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as well, if -- you know, we can't pay them, at least see if

2

it can be arranged with college or school that they're form

3

that they can get some type of credit. So anyway, just food

4

for thought, Chair.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that comment.

8

Okay. Members, 19-17. Mr. Chang, if you can

9
10

explain the replacements? That's a big one, the last one,
large plan copier and scanner.

11

MR. CHANG: I'll take that last.

12

The first item, desktop computers. Our clerical

13

section, they have two old computers that we need to

14

replace. I think there's over five years old. And we

15

don't -- just planning on replacing them before they -- they

16

die on us.

So that's like $3,000.
The next item is the fax machine. That particular

17
18

machine is over ten years old. And it's -- so we feel that

19

being such an essential item because we receive so many

20

faxes every day, that we believe now is a good time to

21

replace it before it dies on us and we end up with no fax

22

machine.

23

The last item, which is the large plan copier and

24

scanner. Our copier gave way about six or seven months ago.

25

So right now, we have to -- the majority of the plans that
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we do need to print, we have to end up going to a printer

2

shop, which is like a -- like almost over a dollar a sheet

3

for these construction plan size sheets. If we do get one,

4

estimated cost is like half the -- you know, half -- like 50

5

cents a sheet. So it is essential for the division because

6

when we're working on projects, we need to work on hard

7

copies a lot of times. And when we're -- when we're putting

8

projects out to bid, a lot of times we need to run some real

9

quick copies for contractors that just, you know, pop in and

10

you want to submit a bid.

11

So it's something that we've been able to get by in

12

the past six months, but I think we really need one in order

13

to work more efficiently and get things out quicker.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

Member Victorino?

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I think his

17

explanation -- well intention, I think, you know, if we need

18

something that important, best we have it instead of

19

spending, like he said, a dollar a copy. Now, that's

20

expensive.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

22

Member Mateo?

23

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No. And I think -- I think

24

Mr. Chang's final comment about being able to get things out

25

quicker kind of gives me the incentive to want to support
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something that can come out quicker from the Water
Department. Thank you.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

4

Member Nishiki?

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

7

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

8

Yeah, Mr. Chang, I -- I can imagine how important

9
10

your large plan copier and scanner is. Is your engineering
division here in this building?

11

MR. CHANG: Yes, it's on the fifth floor.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I would say, you

13

know, in tough times, Public Works Engineering has that

14

large scanner and planner -- copiers too for building

15

blueprints. So you might utilize theirs or work out a

16

partnership with them when you need it. But if you're in

17

the same building, yeah, they're not far from you.

18

Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

20

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

21

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I would just say

24

if you're working on things that are covered by permits that

25

they're doing, they should very, you know, easily be able to
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perform that for you.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

3

Member Baisa?

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, that

8

completes the A B C Accounts for the Water Supply Department

9

and all of the different programs.

10

I just want to say thank you, Mr. Chang, for the

11

question that I asked and the response that you gave me

12

because I -- that's a loaded question. I just wanted your

13

response.

14

Okay. Members, we'll go to CIP, starting on page

15

23-6 of the program book. Okay, 23-6. This is the Hana

16

District. 23-6 program. No, not the -- yeah, the big one.

17

Got it?

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The first project is for

20

the Hana District installation of distribution system

21

improvements, including new waterlines, storage facilities,

22

booster pumps and apparatuses to replace old and/or

23

standard -- substandard facilities, which include -- include

24

is Koali Waterline; install approximately 5,000 lineal feet

25

of 4-inch waterline to replace existing 4-inch ployethylene
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and polyvinyl chloride waterlines.

Improvements will

2

address frequent breaks. And this is an in-house

3

construction.

Director?

4

(Inaudible.)

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Okay. Why -- why

6
7

don't, Herb, provide us with some information.
MR. CHANG: Okay. This -- this project would be an

8

in-house construction project, which we'll be installing

9

approximately 5,000 feet of 4-inch line along the -- the

10

main road, Hana Road -- Hana Highway Road. Right now, the

11

current pipe is -- because I think there's some heavy

12

construction going on in the past year that just keeps

13

running over our pipe. So we need to have the -- this

14

particular section replaced.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I -- I notice that

16

you did construction this year; next year, you have design.

17

So this is a continuous thing?

18

MR. CHANG: That's a big -- excuse me -- big

19

stretch of waterline that we need to eventually replace. So

20

we do have plans to Fiscal Year 2012 to continue.

21
22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it's going to be done in
phases, then?

23

MR. CHANG: Yes.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

25

Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, yes.

2

Where -- in Hana, we're well aware of that section

3

of pipeline. Because I think one day, the Water Department

4

had to respond four times to breaks in the same pipe because

5

of heavy trucks running over it. But you're going to

6

replace it with the same size, 4-inch line. But what exists

7

today is the plastic pipelines. What are you going to

8

replace it with? What -- what kind of material?

9
10

MR. CHANG: We're planning to use that
polyethylene.

11
12

That black pipe.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You going to replace it
with that?
MR. CHANG: Yes.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So how will it improve the

15

pipes not being broken if you have the same material? And

16

I'm assuming you'll be replacing it in the same area?
MR. CHANG: The -- the plan is to have it buried

17
18

instead of -- so you have some protection over the heavy

19

traffic.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So you're saying

21

that the part that gets run over and broken is surfaced --

22

on the surface of the road?

23

MR. CHANG: I'm not exactly 100 percent sure. But

24

I think the pipe is so -- the pipe is so shallow that it's

25

pretty much almost on the surface.
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deeper. And you're going to cushion it with sand?

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you're going to bury it

MR. CHANG: Should be sand cushioned and just
regular dirt above the cushion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Now, with 4-inch

5
6

waterline, that doesn't give you the volume in order to put

7

regular size hydrants.

8

Is that correct?

MR. CHANG: It's too small.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So you only going

9
10

to have those stand-up hydrants, the small pipe hydrants.

11

Right? So why wouldn't you, if you're going to replace it,

12

replace it with something that hydrants can be added to it?
MR. CHANG: I believe we have plans for the

13
14

12-inch, but I think we had some questions from the public

15

on that. So we kind of --

16

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, they questioned the

17

10-inch, the one from Hamoa to Hana Town. Why would you

18

want to put in a really densely populated area 12-inch?

19

MR. CHANG: I think --

20

MR. ENG: I'll address this. I -- as you are

21

aware, and we are aware too, the Hana community, some out

22

there have a concern about extending a 12-inch line beyond

23

Hamoa --

24

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Correct.

25

MR. ENG: -- onto Koali. So before we even do
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anything like that, we will meet with the community.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

3

MR. ENG: This project for next fiscal year is

4

mostly just to alleviate us from having to do these constant

5

repairs of this old line.

6

flow, or anything.

It does not improve service, fire

7

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

8

MR. ENG: It's just really a cost-saving measure.

9

For us to, again, replace that with a 12-inch line, you

10

know, we will work with your community to make sure there's

11

support for that.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you,

13

Director, for that -- that information. I'm happy to hear

14

that you're considering, you know, the larger line, but with

15

the meeting with the community first. Thank you.

16

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I remember a couple

18

years back.

19

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

20

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the amount of

21

money that's shown here for the next fiscal year is mainly

22

for construction, then? Your design components are already

23

completed?

24

MR. CHANG: We're anticipating minimal design.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Minimal design
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because of -- Okay. And I'm just trying to understand how

2

you plan your CIP. So you do major design components in the

3

alternating years?

4
5

MR. CHANG: If -- if we do it in phases, we do the
design one year; and the following year, construction.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that's how you've

6
7

configured this -MR. CHANG: Yes.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- to do altering,

9
10

okay.

11

Okay. Thank you.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

19

The next project, again, in Hana. This is develop

20

additional water source to serve and/or to provide service,

21

reliability, including exploratory well design and drilling

22

and pump controls, control tank, and transmission pipeline

23

design and construction, include is Hana source, develop

24

additional well source to serve, provide service,

25

reliability and/or distribute withdrawals from Hana Aquifer,
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exploratory drilling.

Department?

MR. CHANG: This project is follow-up to our

3

current Fiscal Year 2010 project, in which under this year's

4

project, we have monies to hire a consultant to do the

5

design of an exploratory well in Hana to replace the old

6

Wakiu well. So under the current Fiscal Year 2010, we --

7

we'll be doing the design. And for this fiscal budget,

8

we're trying to do right now, Fiscal Year 2011, we have the

9

construction money to drill in case the replacement well.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. What other sources

11

you guys going to get funding from?

12

MR. CHANG: SRF.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: SRF?

14

MR. CHANG: Yes.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

16

Member Medeiros?

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

18

So your explanation is that this is going to kind

19

of replace the existing Wakiu well in Hana. That well has

20

had some challenges with salinity levels.

21

And if it is, why would you go to the same source?

22

Is that correct?

MR. CHANG: Yes, it is having salinity problems.

23

And the design consultant, we will work with the

24

hydrogeologist to find a relocation. So it may not be the

25

same location.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I'm glad to hear

2

that, that you have a consultant on-board to try to locate a

3

good water source. Because that -- that brings water to a

4

major portion of the residential area in Hana besides the

5

school and so forth. So thank you for that.

6

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

8

Fast question. Is this the one that we hired the

9

guy from the University of Hawaii to do some source

10

development for us -- or exploratory in regards to looking

11

for water in East Maui?

12

MR. ENG: Mr. Chairman, no, this is not the same

13

project is the UH volcanologist, I believe. There is a

14

contract being administered by Ellen Kraftsow. And he was

15

doing, I guess, some deep-well theories that he's trying and

16

I still -- I think, believe, still trying to determine some

17

suitable or potential sites where that phenomenon where

18

there's water at very deep levels under artesian pressure

19

that will solve all of our water problems for eternity. So

20

I'm hoping he's correct.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

22

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

23

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.

2

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, pass.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

6

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That's all for Hana.

10

Chair's going to call for a mid-afternoon recess, unless you

11

guys want to continue? Not bad planning.

12

We're going to take a short recess --

13

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten minutes.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ten minutes or 12 minutes, and

15

we'll return at 2:55.

16

RECESS:

2:43 p.m.

17

RECONVENE:

2:55 p.m.

18
19

This meeting is in recess.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

...(gavel)... The Budget and

Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.

20

Next item is the Paia-Haiku.

21

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Page?

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 24-5. Okay. The project

23

is develop additional water source to serve and/or to

24

provide service, reliability, including exploratory well

25

design and drilling and pump control -- controls, control
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tank and transmission pipeline design and construction.

2

Include is Haiku Source: Develop additional well source to

3

serve, provide service reliability, and/or distribute

4

withdrawals from Haiku aquifer (land exploratory drilling).

5

Mr. Chang, comments?

6

MR. CHANG: This project would be to follow up to

7

what we're doing under this current Fiscal Year 2010. Under

8

this Fiscal Year 2010, we have a consultant that he will --

9

in fact, we have a contract already. He is -- their job is

10

several. One is to site at least six wells in the Haiku

11

area, and then follow up with the design of one exploratory

12

well. And -- and so this Fiscal Year 2011 is to construct

13

that exploratory -- the first exploratory well that we're

14

trying to locate six wells under this current year's

15

project.

So --

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

17

Mr. Molina?

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair.

19

Good afternoon, Mr. Chang. With regards to this

20

exploratory well, is this -- this is not related to any

21

particular specific development. And potentially how much

22

yield of water would this -- you know, this exploratory well

23

is found, potentially how much yield in terms of --

24
25

MR. CHANG: We really -- we would like to best case
or minimum, at least a million gallons a day.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. So it's not in

2

relation to any proposed new development on private land?

3

MR. CHANG: No, it's not. It's just a -- purely

4

Water Department project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. All right. Thank

5
6

you.

7

Thank you, Chair.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

9

Member Medeiros?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.

11

Is the location known at this time where in Haiku?

12

MR. CHANG: We did -- hydrogeologist did come out

13

twice. And we have located about six sites so far. So he's

14

in the process of writing up reports, making

15

recommendations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Are the sites in the

16
17

relatively same area, or are they spread out wide?
MR. CHANG: If you're look -- kind of along

18
19

Kaupakalua, but above Kaupakalua, maybe around --

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

21

MR. CHANG: 1100 square -- 1100 elevation or

22
23

higher.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So the reason I

24

ask -- when you say Haiku, and now you say Kaupakalua,

25

that's right on the borderline of Mr. Molina's district and
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my district. So that's why -- why I want to know, you know,

2

when you get to a more specific area. Because Kaupakalua

3

Road, on the Kakipi Gulch of that is East Maui already.

4
5

MR. CHANG: Which street is that, excuse me? Which
street would that be along the lower Kaupakalua.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, you come along Hana

7

Highway, and Kaupakalua goes mauka. That gulch right after

8

Kaupakalua Road is my district already. So -- and that

9

still is considered Haiku, but that's in the political

10

district of East Maui. So, yeah, if I could find out

11

approximately where that would be. Or, you know, if it's

12

going to be on the Wailuku side of Kaupakalua Road, then

13

that's in Mr. Molina's district.

14
15
16
17
18

MR. CHANG: Yes, it's -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But if it jumps on the
other side, then it's kind of in the East Maui.
MR. CHANG: Excuse me. The six sites are on the
Wailuku side of the gulch.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay.

20

The next thing I wanted to ask you is when you do

21

exploratory drills for wells -- well drilling, do you always

22

have a consultant, a hydrogeologist? And the reason I ask

23

is, you know, when we talk about water concerns and sources,

24

we always hear about the theory about the straws in the same

25

bowl; the most straws we put in there, the faster that
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bowel's going to empty out the aquifer.

2

So what input does the hydrogeologist have as far

3

as, hey, you guys are to close to the next well and you're

4

in the same aquifer? They give you that input?

5

MR. CHANG: Yes, they -- by their experience

6

they -- from what I can follow from them, they avoid cinder

7

cone areas, they think that's probably where the solid

8

rock -- if you were to drill down, you probably wouldn't

9

have a very good well. And they do recommend spacing 1,000

10

feet minimum. But it all depends on the area.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I just want to know

12

that at least that's the consideration when planning out the

13

well, a new well. Okay. Thank you.

14

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

18

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Just to see if we can get

19

information on the land acquisition component on this

20

particular project for -- who are you buying it from and the

21

size of the -- I mean, it's 100,000? Is that what -- so how

22

big is this property that is being purchased?

23

MR. CHANG: When the -- right now, we have six

24

potential sites. And we are looking at possibly going with

25

an A&B property because usually -- the pricewise, they're
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relatively fair. But it could exceed 100,000 if we go to a

2

private property. And the land area would probably be half

3

acre, around that -- that size.

4
5

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Half acre. And A&B is the more
competitive in terms of costs?
MR. CHANG: Yes.

6

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Because the others are private

7
8

owners?

9

MR. CHANG: Because A&B seems to be more easy to

10

work with. They -- they're not as -- don't have that much

11

concerns. Because I guess they have so much property.

12

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And the area we're

13

looking at for the well, is it -- is it gulch area

14

essentially?
MR. CHANG: It's kind of on -- up off -- it's kind

15
16

of like what call ridge. It's not in the gulch. It's on

17

the --

18

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Flat -- flat area?

19

MR. CHANG: Flat area yeah.

20

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Wow. Thank you.

21

Thank you, Chairman.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

23

Member Victorino?

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions. I'm
familiar with the area that they're working in.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

2

Member Molina, you had a question regarding your --

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Upper Ulumalu?

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Before I do that, I

6

know Member Baisa just walked in. So I don't know if she

7

may have questions on --

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa, questions?

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sorry, but I'm not

10

prepared to ask one. And I got on a phone call, and that

11

was it. Thank you.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

13

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chairman. If --

14

well, first of all, thank you for permitting that -- I know

15

it's not something that's listed here.

16

had this expressed to us in public testimony in relation to

17

the budget, you know, I thank you for, you know, allowing

18

some questions to be asked because apparently the residents

19

are not getting a response from the Administration or

20

whoever's been entrusted with that responsibility in the

21

Water Department. And being that there were two prior

22

appropriations in Fiscal Year 2007 and 2009, I think the

23

public deserves some answers as to how that monies were

24

expended, if they were expended at all.

25

But because we've

So if I may ask Director Eng. Mr. Eng, first of
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all, I know you're plate is quite full with a lot of

2

responsibilities, and I know you work here on the weekends a

3

lot.

4

the Upper Ulumalu matter part of your oversight? Have you

5

spent time on this, or has it been entrusted to someone

6

else?

I mean you take your responsibilities seriously.

Is

MR. ENG: Thank you Member Molina. No, I'm not

7
8

actually involved in that project. That's been assigned to

9

someone else some years ago. I know on the testifier,

10

Mr. Mason, I haven't received any of his calls personally.

11

So I -- I regret to hear that no one has responded to him.

12

The Deputy Director has been involved with this

13

project. He might be the best source to give you an update

14

of what has been done and what currently is being done and

15

whatever plans we have for the future. Because we will

16

satisfy your constituents.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, if there's no

17
18

objections, can I call up the Deputy Director?

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Mr. Yamashige?

20

MR. YAMASHIGE: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. As

21

the testifiers mentioned, I think they reported that we have

22

not been up there for quite sometime. And, in fact, we were

23

up there at the end of March and at the beginning of April,

24

depositing about four truckloads of hot mix to address those

25

potholes.
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In January when they had brought up the erosion, we

2

did take a visit up there, I think following that, in

3

February. And it was noticed that we had some potholes up

4

there. So soon after that, in March, we went up there. A

5

follow-up visit in late March revealed that maybe more work

6

needed to be done. So we went back in early April.

7

So I think if you went up there now, the condition

8

of the road is not as they have been representing. We're

9

using hot mix because base course or crusher waste erodes as

10

soon as the next rain comes. So I think you'd be pretty

11

pleased with what's out there now.

12

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I'm glad to hear

13

that. And it's interesting to note that Mr. Mason came out

14

to our Paia hearing that was on March 31st, Mr. Chairman.

15

And I'm glad to see the Administration or Department has

16

responded. And here we are today April 12th. It seems that

17

only maybe when Mr. Mason came out on March 31st on a

18

evening in Paia, that the Department is finally, you know,

19

responding to the concerns of the residents.

20
21
22

And -- now, can you give us a -- a -- a report on
how the $750,000 has been expended.
And for the public's information, Fiscal Year '07,

23

$500,000 -- this was told to the Council back then this is

24

what they would need to improve the roads: 250,000 for

25

Public Works; 250,000 for Water; and then in Fiscal Year
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2009, another 250,000 was appropriated, this time for the

2

Water Department. So a total of $500,00 for the Water

3

Department; 250 for Public Works. What are those figures?

4

How much has been expended of that total appropriation?

5

MR. YAMASHIGE: Yes. None of that money was

6

expended. We worked with Public Works initially to find a

7

remedy to this problem, and it was not something that Public

8

Works was going to take an active role it. It was assigned

9

to the Water Department.

10

When we looked at alternatives to address this

11

problem, we noticed that it's essentially a drainage

12

problem. There's about a mile of road going uphill with

13

only four -- four releases or access points -- or release

14

point for the drainage on this road. It's an old road that

15

was never a County road. Every time they -- they maintained

16

it, they dug the road a little bit deeper. Now it's a

17

drainage-way. The top half mile has about three points

18

where the runoff can escape the road. So the top part isn't

19

as eroded as the bottom part. The bottom part has only one

20

release point. Consequently, the runoff has to stay on the

21

road and it erodes the road.

22

I think one consideration was paving it. That

23

would be actually a pretty dangerous remedy, as you're

24

creating a highway and a drainage-way because there's no

25

place for the water to go. We did work with Public Works,
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and we looked at that permazyme product where they mix it

2

with the residents soil. Because of the slope, again, we

3

didn't feel that that was going to address the concerns. So

4

we are now using hot mix or asphalt to fill up the potholes

5

as they develop. And that's the way we're addressing it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, thank you,

6
7

Mr. Yamashige. As I recall, there was a discussion of that

8

permeable material to be used. But again, you know, the

9

lack of, I guess, communication with the residents concerns

10

me. And you just stated, you didn't use any of the monies

11

that this prior Council's gave to you. And so where are you

12

getting the monies from now to do these little -- I guess,

13

whatever you call it -- temporary fixes? I mean, that -- it

14

seems very substandard.
But I'm quite concerned, Mr. Chairman. You know,

15
16

the Department's asked for us money and then they don't use

17

it.

18

And, Mr. Yamashige, you were from the prior

19

Administration. So you have a full history of this. So

20

I -- I don't know. I'm somewhat dumbfounded with this

21

statement that you're not using the appropriations. So

22

basically, you let the monies lapse?

23

MR. YAMASHIGE: That's correct.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's what happens?

25

MR. YAMASHIGE: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And in the meantime, the

2

residents are left frustrated, we're left frustrated.

3

mean, myself, I take it a little personal because I'm the

4

area rep, I have a responsibility to my constituents.

5

I

We shouldn't even be here, Mr. Chairman, talking

6

about this. And it's embarrassing to have this thing

7

brought in public testimony in the evening, brought up here

8

in public testimony today. It reflects poorly on the hard

9

work that this Department -- this Water Department, overall,

10

they do a good job. But it reflects on all of us; this

11

Department, this Mayor, this Council. You know, we have a

12

responsibility to our taxpayers. And if we can't return a

13

simple phone call, I don't know what to say, Mr. Chairman.

14

That's all it would have taken. That's why they turned to

15

us, and that's why they've come to us here, Mr. Chairman, as

16

the representatives of the people. They didn't know who

17

else to turn to. They called my office, you know.

18

And I thank you, Mr. Chairman, for at least

19

providing a forum here so we can get some answers. So at

20

least now we know the monies weren't spent. And the Mayor

21

did send to my office a copy of a letter of a quarterly

22

proposal to -- to maintain the area. And apparently, that

23

wasn't even kept up by the Department. I mean, I'm not here

24

to point fingers and tell the Administration what to do.

25

But, you know, we got to do our jobs too, and that's why
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we're having this inquiry.
So I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman, and finally

3

that we get something done. But it's unfortunate it's

4

reactive based on testimony given to us in public like that.

5

It's embarrassing for all of us, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

7

Members, any more questions regarding Paia/Haiku?

8

Member Kaho'ohalahala.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, just so I

10

understand it because in the testimony that was brought in

11

this morning. Is that area and the road that's being

12

described County property?

13

MR. YAMASHIGE: No, it isn't. This was several

14

years ago that -- I can't remember the name of the adjoining

15

subdivision. They had a substandard system that they wanted

16

to have improved. This waterline was installed on this

17

private road as part of that project. And since then,

18

maintenance of the road has been an issue.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the

20

testifier this morning has also mentioned there was a

21

written agreement.

22

there an agreement of -- of sorts? Is there a written?

Is that what you're describing? Is

23

MR. YAMASHIGE: Not that I'm aware of.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So what is he making

25

reference to that you're saying we have responsibility now
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to maintain this road?

2

MR. YAMASHIGE: I think about five years ago, there

3

was an effort to return maintenance of the road to the

4

residents because that's what they were doing in the past.

5

Recently, I think a commitment was made for the County to

6

maintain the road. However, it was not for the Public Works

7

Department who maintains road to do, it was turned over to

8

the Water Department. So we're doing what we can. But

9

we're (inaudible) people. We're going to try and address it

10

as best we can, but we're not going to repave the road.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm sorry,

12

I'm just trying to get clarification of what is occurring

13

here. But you're saying that five years ago, the

14

maintenance of the road was handed, instead of Public Works,

15

to the Water Department.
MR. YAMASHIGE: I think it was more recent than

16
17

that. Probably like three or four years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So what in

18
19

this gives us, then, the responsibility or the liability --

20

or what -- what attaches us to this? If you said that you

21

were originally were going to give it back to them to

22

maintain, and then it got shifted to Public Works, it got

23

shifted to you. So what legally makes us responsible for

24

this?

25

MR. YAMASHIGE: I guess the bottom line is we
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installed a waterline on a private roadway. And now
maintenance of the road is being assigned to us.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So anytime we go
into -- is this like an easement, then?
MR. YAMASHIGE: No.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's not an

6
7

easement?
MR. YAMASHIGE: I think the land matters were not

8
9

addressed when this waterline was installed.

So it's just

10

something that we're burdened with because we installed this

11

waterline.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this is an
after-the-fact kind of issue?

14

MR. YAMASHIGE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So we went in and

15
16

put in a waterline with no permission. Is that what you're

17

saying?

18

MR. YAMASHIGE: That's correct. I'm sure is it was

19

discussed at the time, it was never followed up to the point

20

where we are a legal.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: As a result of that,

22

then, what -- what is there that exists now that gives us

23

permanent responsibility for this?

24
25

MR. YAMASHIGE: I cannot address the legal side.
But because we installed that waterline, we're being asked
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to maintain the roadway.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So there's nothing
legal about this, then?
MR. YAMASHIGE: That's as much as I know. That's
why we were assigned that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. When -- I'm
just confused that when -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, I'm just
going to stop right it here, because it does go way back.

10

And I -- I know your concern. I have the same concern

11

regarding when we first discussed this thing, a private road

12

becomes the responsibility of this County, which, in my

13

opinion, we shouldn't be responsible. But because of what

14

happened in regards to a contract to install waterlines and

15

manholes, I guess, along this private road, we're now faced

16

with the repair work every time it rains on Upper Ulumalu.

17

So maybe at a future venue, an item to discuss this

18

more in depth because, you know, this is -- it's not going

19

to go away. Every time it rains, we're going to still have

20

the same problem. And somehow we -- we need to come to a

21

resolution in regards to, do we take care of private roads

22

or, you know, we don't.

23

stop the discussion on this particular issue at this time.

24

But before I do, Mr. Molina.

25

So, you know, I'm -- I'm going to

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I just
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wanted to add in. I know it's a difficult one to -- because

2

we get into the history of the road. I know

3

Mr. Kaho'ohalahala has some legitimate questions.

4

wants additional information, we can look up the dates of

5

the Committee meeting that was under the chairmanship of

6

Member Anderson that could explain the whole history and the

7

legalities of why we're at right now with regards to the

8

history of the road. So anyway, I thank you for at least

9

letting us discuss the appropriation?

If he

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And -- and if you could

10
11

review those minutes. I think Member Anderson was the

12

advocate for this particular item.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just a question,

13
14

then.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is there a legal

17

opinion of Corp. Counsel through that whole proceeding?

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I think there was.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't remember.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I think there was.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you could take a look at what

22

was discussed way back when in regards to this particular

23

issue here. I used to work for the phone company, and we

24

had the same issue along this particular road also.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is that something
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Corporation Counsel knows off -- right off the top?

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I -- I -- I just want to leave

3

it like this here. And if you can do the research or have

4

your staff do the research. Or maybe our staff can do the

5

research and we'll move forward. Okay -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, Chair, I think

6
7

because it's being raised in this budget process and it's

8

tied to funding, that it is an item that this Committee

9

should --

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, I'm

11

just going to stop this discussion on this particular issue

12

right now. And this Chair would like to move on in regards

13

to the 2011 budget. I gave that opportunity to Mr. Molina

14

because that was a fair question that was asked of me,

15

providing that time -- this time to ask the Department

16

questions on this particular issue.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And I appreciate --

18

I thought that's why we were going to move it back to this

19

point so we could ask questions.

20
21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: If we did, we're not going to
get through.

That's it.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

23

Okay. Moving on. Makawao, Pukalani, Kula area,

24

page 25-7. Descriptions, justification, installation of

25

distribution system improvements, including new waterline,
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storage facilities, booster pumps and apparatuses to replace

2

old and/or substandard facilities.

3

Waterline; replacing existing 500,000 gallon Kamole Tank

4

design phase; Phase 10 Booster Pumps; replace booster pumps

5

#531 and 532 (Pookela), #533 and 534 (Maluhia), 535 and 536

6

West (Olinda), with new energy efficient pumps and motor

7

design.

Include is Upper Kula

8

Mr. Chang.

9

MR. CHANG: The first one, the Upper Kula

10

Waterline, we have an old half a million gallon steel tank.

11

This is above Thompson Road area. And so this is -- would

12

be to design the replacement tank. And the next one would

13

be the Phase 10 Booster Pumps, which consist of two pump

14

stations. This is -- this pump stations are essential when

15

we are in a dry period where there's no -- no rainfall, we

16

need to move water from the Kamole -- Kamole Water Treatment

17

Plant located in Haliimaile. This is part of the booster

18

pump section. But anyway, it pushes water from Makawao up

19

to the Lower Kula Line. So we'd be redesigning the

20

electrical system and replacing the -- the pumps with energy

21

efficient pumps and motors.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

23

Member Baisa.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, not a question. But I'm
very happy to see this happening. We need all the
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improvements we can get Upcountry. Thank you.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

3

Member Molina?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Ditto.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

6

Member Victorino?

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nope. I agree.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo? Member Nishiki?

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

11

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

13

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, I only echo

14
15

Member Baisa.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. 25-8, Makawao,

16

Pukalani, Kula Treatment Plant improvements. And I'm just

17

going to have the Mr. Chang provide us with some comments.

18

MR. CHANG: Okay. The first part of this project,

19

the Piiholo Water Treatment Plant -- let's see. This one is

20

to follow up with the current project we have under Fiscal

21

Year 2010, which is to install filters at the Piiholo Water

22

Treatment Plant to reduce the organic carbon. This is --

23

affects the by-products in the water. It's part of an EPA

24

requirement. So this would be the construction phase. And

25

it's limit is 5 -- $5 million.

Yeah, $5 million.
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The next item, Olinda Water Treatment Plant. This

2

is the Upper Kula System. Our existing 3-million gallon

3

clearwell.

4

it's made out of steel and it needs to be out clean out with

5

rust -- cleaned out of rust and that type of work. So --

6

It's similar to that previous Kamole Tank where

And the next item is the Kamole Water Treatment

7

Plant. This is to replace the booster pumps that push the

8

water from the plant up to Makawao. So this one is going to

9

be -- we're trying to get multiple funding from this one.

10

We estimate the project to cost $5.5 million. And we're

11

trying to get the state -- excuse me -- the EPA Tribal

12

Assistant Grant money, approximately $1 million. And the

13

rest we're trying to use -- get the State -- State Revolving

14

Funds to pick up the rest of the construction cost.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it?

16

MR. CHANG: And the last one would be the -- excuse

17

me.

That's it.

Sorry.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. This

20

is good. We have a constant testifier who, of course, comes

21

and reminds us all the time about water quality Upcountry.

22

And so I'm happy to see that we're trying to upgrade the

23

treatment plant. I'm very concerned about this note under

24

here that is under the -- what we're going to do. And it

25

says, "No impact on staffing.

However, increase in annual
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operating costs for electricity and operations of $250,000 a
year are anticipated."
You know, this is great that we're upgrading. But

4

obviously, it's going to cost us a lot more money. And I

5

hope that as we are doing our finance projections that we're

6

looking -- that we're realizing it's going to cost us

7

another quarter million dollars a year.

8

great to have improvements, but they cost money. And we're

9

back to again having to charge for water. Thank you.

So, you know, it's

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

11

Member Molina?

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

14

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

16

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

20

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

22

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I just have a

23

comment. Because just the previous project we were looking

24

at new energy efficient pumps and motors for the design

25

that work on efficiency. And in here we're saying, oh, by
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the way, the -- the electricity bill is going to be a

2

quarter million dollars, you know, for each one. So why are

3

you not looking at this for efficiencies as well?

4

MR. ENG: Mr. Chairman. Thank you --

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Director?

6

MR. ENG: Actually, the impacts are more in

7

operations costs for the -- the new treatment facility at

8

Piiholo. Again, we haven't made a final decision on what

9

type of treatment to remove the organic carbon. Again, the

10

organic carbon is a precursor to the disinfection

11

by-products, and there are strict contaminant levels by the

12

EPA on that. So it more -- most likely, it's going to be

13

some kind of media type of treatment. So I think that is

14

anticipated costs for media replacement and operations of

15

the new treatment facility.

16

So I don't think -- there might be some pumping,

17

additional pumping. But mostly, I think this is for the new

18

media that would be involved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Now, you just

19
20

made a presentation that said you're going to pump this

21

water from Kamole to Makawao. And that's your -- the scope

22

of what you just described in Item Number 2 on there.

23

Right?

24
25

MR. ENG: Right, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So I'm assuming,
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then, you're talking about a pumpage cost. Is that not a
direct relationship to what you just described?
MR. CHANG: I think this -- the Kamole Water

4

Treatment Plant as far as the pumping from the Kamole up to

5

the Lower Kula, that one, we're replacing existing pump

6

stations. So that would replace old pumps with new -- new

7

pumps and motors that will be more efficient than what we

8

have currently.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, now, explain to

10

me the -- the cost -- the note here, the cost for

11

electricity, then?

12

MR. CHANG: Oh, the note about operating impact,

13

that relates to the -- Item Number 1, the Piiholo Water

14

Treatment Plant. Because the --

15

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So just the

16

filtration itself is going to be where the cost for

17

electricity is?

18
19

MR. CHANG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And that can not be

20

done in that way that would incorporate any kind of

21

efficiencies for -- for power in terms of filtration?

22

MR. ENG: Well, if -- for that Piiholo Water

23

Treatment Plant Treatment Facility, there will be some --

24

probably some additional new pumps, but they will be of

25

premium efficiency types. Again, I am assuming by this
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cost, that most of those -- that $250,000 would be for the
media, whatever the treatment type of process is.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So is this an
accurate statement in here?
MR. ENG: No, there could be some additional
electricity.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But you're saying

8

there seems to be more involved in the media that you're

9

using than electricity?

10

MR. ENG: I would think so.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this is --

12

MR. ENG: Well, that would be part of the

13
14
15
16

operations costs.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So you're saying
it's heavily on the operations versus electricity?
MR. ENG: Well, probably. I -- you know, we

17

haven't really broken it out. And I don't think we can

18

accurately do so at this time.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for
your comments.

21

MR. ENG: You're welcome.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fast comment.

25

MR. ENG: Sure.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what -- what is the

2

relationship between this and other electrical costs pumping

3

water from Kamole to Piiholo Reservoir? Added cost or

4

embedded in the same cost?

5

MR. ENG: Okay. Well -- okay. Let's say you're

6 pumping from Kamole Water Treatment Plant up to our Pookela
7

Tank. Now, that's a big pumping cost. I think as Paul

8

Seitz indicated, you know, Kamole plant is the highest MECO

9

customer. The project described in Number 3 with the new

10

booster pumps, again, the existing pumps are, you know,

11

40-odd years old or 30-odd years old. So we know they're

12

going to be of much higher efficiency. So we should, given

13

that if we pay -- pump the same amount, we should have

14

incurred savings in electricity there.

15
16

Again the Piiholo Water Treatment Plant, it may
require some pumping of that water in order to treat it.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?

18

MR. ENG: So we can anticipate some additional

19
20
21

electricity costs there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. The next one
is Upcountry water storage, 25-9.

22

Mr. Chang?

23

MR. CHANG: Okay. Let's see. This is the

24

Piiholo -- let's see. This one would be the upgrade of the

25

water treatment plant to reduce the disinfection of
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by-products.

2

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You got the wrong one.

3

MR. CHANG: Wrong one. Oh, sorry wrong page.

4
5

Sorry.
Let's see. This is the large raw water reservoir

6

that we're trying to construct for the Piiholo, the Lower

7

Kula Water System. The funding amount is $1 million. And

8

this project we're still trying to get the Federal funding

9

to assist us in the cost for the project. So --

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

11

Member Baisa?

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you. The last

13

time I heard about this, we asked and there was some

14

discussion about they weren't sure where they were going to

15

put it; secondly, they weren't sure if they were going to

16

build a big one or several little ones so they would be

17

closer the source -- or to the use, and not have to pump

18

water so far. What is the status of this?

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?

20

MR. ENG: Thank you. I'll address that one. This

21

project really hinges on getting Federal funding assistance.

22

And I know there's been some recent communications with

23

Representative Hirono to seek some support. The problem

24

right now is we're also requesting some support for the

25

Waikamoi Flume reconstruction.

So, you know, we're
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really -- as I was mentioning to Member Baisa during the

2

earlier break, you know, we're in a tough situation because,

3

you know, we're like the largest nonprofit organization

4

around trying to seek grants like others are trying to seek

5

from us. So -- but that's where we're at. We need -- we

6

need grant assistance somehow.
But as far as proceeding further we need to have

7
8

some indication that there'll be some Federal funding. Even

9

the money that we are budgeting for our preliminary

10

engineering reports and EIS, I hesitate to really encumber

11

those funds until we have a clear indication. So if you

12

want to say this is a bit like a -- a place mark, maybe it

13

is. You know, but we have some money budgeted and be ready

14

to go. But I think it really hinges on, again, a strong

15

signal from the Federal Government that they'll help us

16

in -- with some assistance here.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is not ARRA

19

monies?

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

21

MR. ENG: No.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

23

Member Molina?

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.

25

Mr. Director, thank you for the update. And, you
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know, being Upcountry, there's several groups of people who

2

are very concerned about water issues in general. Have --

3

has the Department continued to be inclusive of these

4

groups, at least as it relates to the site and so forth?

5

Have you been networking with these groups on this?

6

MR. ENG: Yes. Specifically, on this project, as

7

we really finalize that site, you know, we'll be working

8

with -- and it could be an environmentally sensitive site.

9

So we're going to work with the proper groups. And even as

10

we -- like in the earlier project that Mr. Chang was

11

describing on the Haiku Source, groundwater source, when we

12

have -- find something in mind, we'll probably be meeting

13

with groups that could potentially oppose us on any

14

development new source up there. So we're going to make our

15

best efforts to keep the community happy up there.

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.

17

Thank you, Chair.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

19

Member Victorino?

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I think all the
explanation has been given. Thank you.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

23

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

2

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

6

Wailuku/Kahului.

7

MR. CHANG: Okay. There's four projects that's

8

planned. The Ku Drive Waterline. This is in the Sand Hills

9

area.

There's approximately 1600 feet of

10

two-and-a-half-inch waterline that we want to replace with

11

8-inch waterline.

12

This is a construction project.

Next one would be Nani, Loke Wailani Kaniela

13

Street. This is in Wailuku, kind of near where the old

14

Nashiwa Bakery was. This is to replace 4-inch waterline,

15

roughly 2,000 feet. And this is -- would be a design

16

project.

17

The next one would be the Kanoa, Oihana and Pikale

18

Place. This is by the old Dairy Queen by, Wailuku. That

19

area. This would be to replace some old 3-inch, 4-inch --

20

6-inch lines with an 8-inch pipe. This would be almost

21

2,000 feet of pipe.

22

And the last project is the new Kahului Tank, which

23

is located by the Maui Memorial Park off Waiale Road. Maui

24

Lani is, by agreement, supposed to construct a 1.5 million

25

gallon storage tank for their development. And the Water
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Department is asking to increase the size by 1 million to --

2

so that we have a 2.5 million gallon tank that can also

3

serve the existing consumers.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

5

Member Victorino?

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. Let's

7

start from the top. These areas that you're looking at,

8

most of these areas are pretty old neighbors. Right?

9
10

MR. CHANG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think some of them, 40,

11

50 years plus. Because, you know, I think we've had some

12

breaks over there in -- in recent times, and they've been

13

pretty high?

14
15

MR. ENG: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, pretty old. Yeah?

16

So I can see the need for that. The Kahului one, what is

17

the probability of Maui Lani and us getting this 2.5 instead

18

of the 1.5? Is this looking good as far as a joint

19

agreement on -- on this particular upgrade?

20

MR. CHANG: We already have talked to them. And in

21

the -- in the agreement that we have with them that they're

22

supposed to build a 1.5, there's a provision in that

23

agreement that allows us, the Water Department, to upsize if

24

we want to.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And if we upsize,
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they pay for that? Or are we responsible for the difference
between the 1.5 and the 2.5?

3
4

MR. CHANG: Yeah, the Water Department would be
responsible for the difference.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The difference in the

5
6

cost?

MR. CHANG: Yes.

7

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. All right. Thank

8
9

you. Thank you for that clarification.
Thank you, Chair.

10
11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Again, Members, 20-16. Yeah?

12

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I forgot to tell you guys the

14

page number.

15

Member Mateo?

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

18

Member Medeiros? Now you can come to the right

19
20
21

date.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Now that you gave us the
reference, thank you. No, no questions.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

23

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

24

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, pass.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

3

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. Just to say, I think a

6

lot of residents, these improvement will impacts and

7

certainly will be appreciative of it. Thank you, Chair.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. 26-17.

9
10

Mr. Chang?
MR. CHANG: Wailuku-Kahului Source improvements.

11

The first project is the Waikapu South. This project is

12

located in the Maui Tropical Plantation area above in the --

13

mauka that. We're working with the land owner, Michael

14

Atherton. And we are still waiting for some more -- a

15

little bit more work before we decide whether we're going to

16

proceed with this particular well source development. You

17

probably -- couple months from now, we probably have a

18

good -- good idea whether the Department is going to be

19

going with this project.

20

So the next one is Waikapu -- excuse me. Wailuku

21

Well Number 1. This is to follow up a Fiscal Year 2010

22

project in which we are currently have a consultant

23

designing a exploratory well. This is above Wailuku, maybe

24

a Maalaea side of the Iao Valley Road. So this project in

25

the Fiscal Year 2011 will follow up with the construction of
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the exploratory well.

2

The next one Wailuku Well II. The Department is

3

looking at doing the second well in the general area. And

4

this would be to design a second exploratory well in the --

5

let's see. And I believe their construction -- so, yeah,

6

that project would also include the drilling of the

7

exploratory well. So it would be design and construct

8

exploratory.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

9

Mr. Victorino?

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.

12

And again, just so the public knows, both these

13

wells are really wells that are going to replace Shaft 33?

14

And we are well aware of the age of Shaft 33 and the high

15

probability of that one day maybe even collapsing. I think

16

that's probably -- part of the rationale for this, right,

17

Mr. Eng?

18
19

MR. ENG: Well, we don't anticipate it
collapsing --

20
21
22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, but it's an old
shaft -MR. ENG: -- but the pump giving up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, giving up?
MR. ENG:

(Inaudible.)

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the other thing is
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the inaccessibility to get down there --

2

MR. ENG: Right.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- and it's difficulty.
Right?

5

MR. ENG: Right, that's absolutely right.

6

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just so the public

7

understands what this project is really.

8

new source, it's really replace a source that is existing

9

right now with two wells instead of -- two pump wells

10

instead of just one out of Shaft 33?

11

MR. ENG: Uh-huh.

It's not to find a

12

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.

13

No more questions, Mr. Chair.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

Member Mateo?

16

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Department, if that's

17

the response to this particular project because I thought it

18

was to help subdivision occurring in the Waikapu --

19

further -- further on right past Waikapu. So I thought that

20

was the rationale. But you made it clear. Thank you.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

22

Member Nishiki?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

25

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
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2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. My only

3

question has to do with you earlier statement about the

4

Iao -- Iao aquifer and it's being developed to its capacity.

5

So are these falling within that?
MR. ENG: Yes, they are within the per -- permits

6
7
8
9

of Iao.

So we're fine in that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
Okay. Thank you.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Johnson?

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: None.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Director Eng, in order for

17

us to replace -- I guess, utilizing Shaft 33, we're looking

18

at probably between 2013 and 2014?

19

MR. ENG: Yes. And we're currently constructing

20

two wells, so there's going to be potentially five

21

replacement wells. So the first two are under construction

22

currently. So these would be Wells III and IV.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

24

Okay. Members, we go to Kihei-Makena.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair? Chair?
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2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just a brief

3

question because you have a note here for half a million

4

dollars for electricity.

5

are you going to accommodate for some of those kinds of

6

efficiencies for --

So how, if -- if anything at all,

MR. ENG: Well, ideally, if -- if we can have

7
8

enough capacity in the system where we can run some of the

9

wells on off-peak rates and periods of time, you know, or --

10

and that's -- that's really part of this. If -- if when we

11

do have enough capacity in the system, we can have more

12

flexibility, maybe take advantage of those off peak rates.

13

That's an ideal situation.

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that would be the
only alternative you -- you're seeing is off-peak?
MR. ENG: I'd say right now, using premium

16
17

efficiency motors, high efficiency motors, and monitoring

18

and managing how you pump and when you pump.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But that's what you

20

anticipate is a half million dollars, then, just to operate

21

that?

22

MR. ENG: You know, I don't know how precise this

23

number is.

I think it's just an estimate of electricity

24

costs to operate. And that would be for the one well, the

25

Waikapu South Well.
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2

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA:

(Inaudible.)

MR. ENG: I'd say like Wailuku Well I and II, being

3

that's replacing Shaft 33, hopefully there will be a no net

4

increase in electricity pumpage.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So this

5
6

amount is attributed to the South -- the Waikapu South?

7
8

MR. ENG: I'd say it's attributed to the Waikapu
South Well it looks like.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

9

Okay. Thank you, Chair.

10
11
12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 27-11, Kihei/Makena
distribution systems improvement.
Mr. Chang?

13
14

MR. CHANG: Okay. These are two projects, both in

15

the Maui Mall -- excuse me -- Maui Meadows areas. The first

16

one is the Maui Meadows #17 Booster Station. This project

17

would be to construct the replacement booster pumps and

18

replacing the old pumps with -- the new pumps would have

19

higher -- new energy efficiency pumps and motors.

20

The second one would be Maui Meadows #17 [sic]

21

Booster Pump Station, which is mauka of the 17. This is a

22

design project. And It's similar, we would replace the old

23

existing booster pumps with the new energy efficiency pumps

24

motors.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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Member Nishiki?

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

6

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

10

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

14

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

16

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, as we go through these

18

CIPs, Director, I -- I note that you go way out to 2016

19

on -- for this project, and some of the other projects, a

20

little closer. Looking at the Maui Island Plan, Appendix C,

21

does this cost -- any of the costs that I see is in regards

22

to the Maui Island Plan, or do you have that cost already in

23

or not?

24
25

MR. ENG: Well, a lot of this planning has been in
place for a number of years, you know, well before the
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current Maui Island Plan has been -- been developed. It

2

would be consistent, though, with the Maui Island Plan.

3

believe, though, down the road, as -- as we get into the

4

community plans, that's where we're really have to make

5

certain that those community plans are consistent too with

6

our Water Use and Development Plan. Or we'll have to make

7

some revisions to our Water Use and Development Plan because

8

we do serve the General Plan and the community plans.

9
10
11

I

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Financially, can the Department
support the infrastructure improvements?
MR. ENG: That's going to be the challenge. I

12

think the big effort in the next few years will be really

13

looking at our rate designs. And as we get better data with

14

the new billing programs, I think we become more creative.

15 And make sure that we charge our customers the appropriate
16

cost of services. And I think overall, we could have maybe

17

a fairer rate design in place.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

19

Okay. Members, we go to 28-15, West Maui. This is

20
21
22

the West Maui distribution system improvements.
Mr. Chang?
MR. CHANG: Okay. This is one project to construct

23

a replacement waterline in the Honokowai area. And this

24

involves that existing waterline in Kameeui Place.

25

roughly 400 feet of 8-inch line to replace a two-and-a-half

It's
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inch waterline.

Currently, under Fiscal -- this current

2

budget, Fiscal Year 2010, we have the design of the project

3

undergoing. So this would be a follow-up to that.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

5

Member Johnson, questions?

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just -- is this right in

7

town?
MR. CHANG: This would be if you're coming off

8
9

Lower -- coming onto Lower Hono Road, just --

10

MR. ENG: Honoapiilani Road.

11

MR. CHANG: If you're going towards Hono -- if

12

you're going towards Napili.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So it's by Honokowai?

14

MR. CHANG: Yes, that area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. Where -- where

15
16

is this -- where is Kameeui Place? Where is that?

17

MR. CHANG: It's -- if you're coming off the

18

highway, you take a left on Lower Hono Highway passed

19

Safeway.

20

the right.

21
22
23
24
25

It's the first intersect -- first cul-de-sac on

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You mean by Star or -MR. CHANG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Is there any other
thing going on in conjunction with it?
MR. CHANG: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So -- okay. I just wanted

to understand. So it's just old and you're replacing it?

3

MR. CHANG: Yes.

4

MR. ENG: And it is several substandard in size.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

6

MR. ENG: It's only a two-and-a-half-inch diameter

7

line.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. So about how many

9

people does this serve? Or does it serve everybody along

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

the lower road?
MR. CHANG: It's just along the cul-de-sac, maybe a
dozen -- dozen properties.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's just a small
little subdivision?
MR. CHANG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, because some of

17

these things -- and again, the whole issue comes up about

18

deferral. You know, a lot of times when improvements are

19

made, whether it's to the roadway or whatever, the people

20

that live in that area, this is basically paid for how when

21

you're going in and replacing? Part of repair and

22

maintenance? Through their water fees? Or how is this

23

actually going to be?

24

MR. ENG: It's paid through our rates, basically.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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MR. ENG: It's unrestricted. So it's the cash that

we transfer to CIP.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

4

MR. ENG: And we use cash for a lot of these old

5
6
7
8
9

waterline replacement projects.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Because you don't
generate enough?
MR. ENG: No, not really.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And then with the new

10

meters that are in that area that are not too far away from

11

there, like at Honua Kai, for example, are they on County

12

water, or are they not on County water?

13
14
15
16
17

MR. ENG: I think part of Honua Kai is on our
County system.
MR. CHANG: The first phase was done with County
meter. Second phase was private.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So it's done with Kaanapali

18

Water Company, or whatever it's called now? Okay.

19

trying to understand, you know, how this is being paid for.

20

So yeah, I -- if it's got to be repaired and replaced, it --

21

I guess that has to be done. Thank you.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

23

Member Baisa?

24

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

I'm just
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

3

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

5

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

9

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

11

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, 28-16. West Maui source

13
14

improvements. Mr. Chang?
MR. CHANG: Okay. This is to develop new -- a new

15

well in the Lahaina area. Similar to the previous one,

16

we -- under the Fiscal Year 2010 budget, we have hired a

17

consultant with hydrogeologists to site the few wells -- I

18

believe it was at least three or four wells. Three. So we

19

got along with the project where we are cited the wells and

20

are looking at -- I think we have -- we selected one side

21

above Honokowai.

22

So this -- the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, we're

23

locking at doing the -- let's see. The -- the -- yeah. So

24

yeah, we're doing the -- designing of the development and --

25

let's see if we're doing construction.

This is just for the
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design of the development of the well. Because under this

2

Fiscal Year 2010, we're designing and we have money for the

3

construction of the exploratory.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Johnson?

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And -- and whereabouts are

6
7

you planning on doing this?
MR. CHANG: This would be on the left -- if you're

8

looking uphill, it would be on the left of the Honokowai

9

Stream area.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So --

11

MR. ENG: Mahinahina.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's Mahinahina
in the vicinity of where Hawaiian Homes has land there?

14

MR. ENG: Well, well mauka and --

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

16

MR. ENG: -- and really mauka the pineapple fields.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So is it near the

18
19
20

end of Kaka -- (inaudible) Road or -MR. ENG: Well, it's kind of above our -- our
surface water treatment plant in Mahinahina.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

22

MR. ENG: So it would go up mauka the airport.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So that would serve who,

24
25

Puukolii Village or whoever?
MR. ENG: It would tie into our West Maui System.
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And we can --

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So are any of the

3

developments that are currently in that area able to tap in,

4

then?

5

Because I know right now, one of the biggest

6

problems we have right now is the gravity feed. There's no

7

storage up above. So I mean, we're -- just our condominium

8

alone is on -- not on County water, but we are on private

9

water system.

10
11

MR. ENG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Will this be made

12

available, then, only to new developments or existing

13

developments as well?

14

MR. ENG: Well, I think, you know, we do -- like

15

Central Maui, we do have a shortage in West Maui. We have a

16

similar kind of water availability situation. So it will

17

address the shortages we currently face.

18

it's enough capacity, could provide for some -- some growth.

19

But basically, mostly, just to bring us up to standards.

20
21

It probably, if

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So that we have
sufficient capacity?

22

MR. ENG: Yeah, backup, redundancy.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And then it would be -- our

24

plant the way it's configured right now with the source

25

development, we would have capacity to be able to treat the
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water? Or is this groundwater that will not require much
treatment?

3
4

it
won't require treatment other than chlorination.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Okay. All right.

5
6

And it includes -- I guess,

7

source development,

8

design.

9

construction.

10
11

what is the -- well,

it's just a

so it's just the exploratory and the

So it's nothing -- just for the pipeline design and
So there's no -- there's -- there no --

there's huge storage?
MR. ENG: I think we can tie that into existing

12

storage that we -- that our surface water treatment facility

13

uses in Mahinahina. So that's one advantage is this mauka

14

or nearby are our existing infrastructure.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But -- but it really

16

will not be -- if it's using existing storage, then it's

17

going to limit what we can really -- you know, like it's not

18

going to be expanding hugely the amount of water

19

availability, then?

20
21

MR. ENG: We'll review our storage needs. It will
address some of our lack of availability.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah --

23

MR. ENG: Storage isn't that much of a problem.

24
25

Source is our bigger problem.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And would it be able to
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serve -- like I know they're talking about expansion of
Villages of Lei Alii, for example, and DHHL?

3

MR. ENG: Yeah. That -- that's not directly

4

serving them. I know there was a couple projects

5

recently -- was it HFDC or -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah -- yeah -- yeah. I'm

6
7
8
9
10
11
12

sorry.

It's -MR. ENG: A huge project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: HFDC because it's right

adjacent to DHHL.
MR. ENG: And I think they're planning to develop
five or six wells.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: On their own?

14

MR. ENG: On their own. And we're currently

15

working with DHHL because they want to expand a little bit

16

more around the Civic Center.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

18

MR. ENG: I think another 100 homes, or so. Not

19

that much. So right now, it looks like we'll be working in

20

partnership with them for a well --

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.

22

MR. ENG: -- which they will develop and

23
24
25

dedicate -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In addition to this one?
MR. ENG: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank

you very much.

3

MR. ENG: You're welcome.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

9

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No thanks.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

11

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

15

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

17

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I just have a

18

question. When you said that storage wasn't a problem but

19

you're going to develop this ground well, but you're going

20

to possibly storage -- store it in the same reservoir that's

21

being treated? Is that what you was -- you explained?

22

MR. ENG: Yes, there's existing storage tank that

23

takes treated water -- treated water from our Mahinahina

24

Surface Water Treatment Plant.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But if you're
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taking groundwater and then you're -- you're going to be
mixing it with treated water --

3
4

MR. ENG: Uh-huh. Yeah, you can mix the two types
of waters. There's no problem with that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But you're

5
6

taking better water, and then you're putting it into a

7

lesser -MR. ENG: Which -- which one the better water in

8
9
10

your mind?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, I would think

11

the groundwater is better than -- the treatment water that

12

you're talking about currently that's in existence, and

13

you're talking about the reservoir that's in Mahinahina.

14

that -- is that groundwater?

Is

15

MR. ENG: No, that's treated surface water.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Surface water?

17

MR. ENG: But, you know, after treatment, you know,

18

surface water should be as good as good quality groundwater.

19

Really the only difference is you might see between surface

20

and groundwater are -- are minerals or chlorides.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But --

22

MR. ENG: You'll get more on groundwater than in

23
24
25

surface water.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I know. And that
does cause some concern, I think. Because you're taking
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water that's being treated differently than from

2

groundwater. Right? And I'm just looking at

3

infrastructure.

4

MR. ENG: Okay. Well -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're putting the

5
6

infrastructure concerns together.

Then the treated water

7

from surface has other issues involving infrastructure.

8

As -- as I'm trying to understand, one -- anyway.

9

MR. ENG: Actually, there's not a problem blending

10

the two types of water. We do it in Central Maui. We have

11

our Iao Water Treatment Facility. And that enters a system

12

and combines with groundwater. And we're mostly groundwater

13

in Central Maui.

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay -MR. ENG: Upcountry -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's something

16
17
18

that I probably want to spend more time -MR. ENG: Okay. And Upcountry, same thing. When

19

we're running Pookela well, we're -- we're blending it with

20

water from Kamole Weir and our surface water sources. So

21

it's certainly appropriate to --

22

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The reason for doing

23

new source development is to get a good quality water from

24

the ground.

25

MR. ENG: Uh-huh, of course.

CAMMIE GILLETT, RPR, CSR
(808) 244-DEPO
215

1

4/12/10 BF

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then taking

2

surface water, then, we're talking two different kinds of --

3

one that has more organic material, mineral matter in the

4

water, and we're trying to treat that to make it acceptable

5

for drinking. That -MR. ENG: No --

6

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I see it as -- as

7
8

two kinds of water.

9

MR. ENG: No. You know, actually, with surface

10

water is a type of water that might have more organic

11

components. And that's what the process removes.

12

Basically, it -- it's a filtration process. And -- but

13

it's --

14
15
16

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's not -- it's
just a filtration and, it's not an added chemical process?
MR. ENG: Sometimes you put some (inaudible) in to

17

aid in the removal of any dissolved organic components. But

18

after you filter it, some people -- and I have to say I'm

19

one of them, that prefers surface water to drink. I -- It

20

just tastes better to me.

21
22
23

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's because we
added flavoring, that's why.
MR. ENG: I beg your pardon?

24

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just kidding.

25

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

(Inaudible.)
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, I -- I'll try

to pursue that -- those questions on my own.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Put it in writing and
we'll get answers.

5

28-17, West Maui Treatment Plant. Mr. Chang?

6

MR. CHANG: This project is -- involves the

7

Mahinahina Water Treatment Plant that we were just talking

8

about. This project would provide design money to look at

9

changing the conventional treatment plant to possibly

10

micro-filtration and potentially maybe provide a little bit

11

more better quality or easier mechanism to filter the water

12

from the -- the ditch. So it's a design project for -- to

13

upgrade the treatment plant.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

15

Member Johnson?

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions on this one.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

22

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

24

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

3

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aole.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

5

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aole, ditto.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Lanai. We have nothing

7
8
9
10

on Lanai.
Molokai. 30-3, Molokai distribution system
improvements. Mr. Chang?
MR. CHANG: This one has two -- two parts to it.

11

The Ualapue Tank. This one, we are trying to resolve some

12

water quality problems. So this -- we were planning to

13

design a second pipeline to be dist -- to allow the water

14

inside in the tank to move more quickly. Right now, there's

15

only one pipe that accesses in and out for this tank to get

16

into the distribution system. So by installing a second

17

pipe, we will force -- end up forcing the water to move into

18

the tank and out of the tank instead of having it -- what we

19

call it, in a floating situation. So the main purpose is to

20

circulate the water in the existing Ualapue Tank.

21

The second project is the Kualapuu Well, which is

22

our main source of water for Kaunakakai. And this would be

23

to install a backup generator in case the Molokai Electric

24

power fails.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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Mr. Mateo?

2

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aole.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

8

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

12

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

18

Next one, Molokai source improvements.

19

MR. CHANG: This project is the design for

20

additional well to backup the Kualapuu Well. So,

21

essentially, this is just a design project for the second

22

well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is a Kaunakakai-Kawela

23
24
25

Well?
MR. CHANG: This one would be to serve the
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Kaunakakai area.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.

3

Member Mateo?

4

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

8

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aole.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?

10

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Questions?

12

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, I'm sorry.

13

Pass.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?

21

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

23

Countywide, 31-23.

24

MR. CHANG: Okay. This is to -- well, two -- let's

25

see -- $2.6 million.

This funding is for unforeseen
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circumstances of any revisions to the field conditions and

2

annual system upgrades needed to minimize impact to the

3

project schedule, and to avoid costly delays.

4

are archeological monitoring, mitigation, well booster pump,

5

and facility improvements, land appraisals and acquisition,

6

tank and facility improvements, pipe and facility

7

improvements, and energy related improvements.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

9

Member Victorino?

Possible uses

10

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So if I -- real quickly.

11

This is just like a backup fund? Anything comes out of the

12

ordinary that you have need for, this is where you pick out

13

of?

14
15

MR. CHANG: Yes, and also our maintenance for pumps
comes out of this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Out of this, maintenance

16
17
18

also?
MR. CHANG: Yes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.

20

All right. Thank you.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?

22

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chair -- Chairman, just to

23

conclude it, I look at all of this, and I see how ambitious

24

the Department is. We don't know what their accomplished

25

rates were for this current fiscal year. So I'm kind of
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hoping, because of the urgency in meeting the health needs,

2

the water quality needs, as well as the economic needs in

3

trying to get projects moving, I hope we are going to be

4

able to accomplish this. Because every single district that

5

was covered is depending on all of these CIP projects.

6

You now have the number of engineers you need. You

7

now have the backup finances you need. We -- we got to

8

move. We got to get these things done. So the onus is now

9

on you. We have, more or less, approved these projects in

10

sporting the Department's effort.

Plenty pressure on you,

11

Mr. Chang and Mr. Eng. I hope we can accomplish these

12

things because we watching. Thank you.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chinese power.

15

(Inaudible)

go get 'em.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?

17

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

18

Mr. Chang, you -- part of the narration, you speak

19

of possible uses as archeological monitoring mitigation.

20

just want to ask a fast question. When you guys dig wells

21

or any -- any kind of construction work, what is the

22

Department's responsibility or requirement as far as

23

archeological surveys or stud -- monitoring?

24
25

MR. CHANG: If it's like waterline projects, tank
projects, we check with the State Historical Preservation
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District first.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

3

MR. CHANG: And they advise us.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.

5

MR. CHANG: If they feel that it's not -- that area

6

is probably no -- no problem. Or, on the other hand, if

7

they feel it's a problem, then they'll require us to do a

8

monitoring plan while construction is going on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What -- what about

9
10

draining wells, where you going to go? Quite -- quite a

11

distance down.

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

MR. CHANG: I don't recall having any issues with
the State.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Requirements for any
archeological work?
MR. CHANG: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that
information.

19

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

21

Member Kaho'ohalahala?

22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just a follow-up to
Member Medeiros.
So when you're doing new source development, then
you have some kind of reconnaissance or a survey done of the
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area prior to you going in to do this testing when you're
doing citing of wells?
MR. CHANG: We would check with the State

4

Historical Preservation. They -- they -- they're -- they

5

know the area fairly well. So they would advise us if they

6

feel that area is of free of archeological artifacts and

7

things. And if -- on the other hand, if they feel it's --

8

it is -- they require us to have a monitoring plan, then it

9

may go as far as having archeologists on-site while we're

10
11
12
13
14

excavating.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So that's all
done prior to, then?
MR. CHANG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, okay.

15

That's all.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

17

Member Johnson?

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, just one question for

23
24
25

the Department.
The prior fiscal year appropriation 2010, was -you had $5,850,000 I guess. What -- what's the current
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balance that you have left?

2

MR. CHANG: Sorry, I don't have that number.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

4

MR. CHANG: I would think it's at least halfway.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I guess, maybe

6

through the Committee, if we can get that figure, that would

7

help us decide how much we should consider for this upcoming

8

fiscal year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA: I was going to ask that same

12

question.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Prior year's appropriation, you

15

know, what was the spent-down amount? That would give us a

16

fairly good idea how you guys are progressing.

17

Members, that's all we have for the Water

18

Department today. And if you do have any questions

19

regarding the different programs, as well as the CIP, if you

20

could forward those questions to the Chairman, we'll get

21

answers for you.

22

Tomorrow, we'll start again at 9:00. And we will

23

be discussing the Department of Environmental Management.

24

So the Budget and Finance Committee meeting for April 12 is

25

now adjourned.
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ADJOURN:

4:09 p.m.
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